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We have audited the annexed balance sheet of KOHINOOR TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED as at 30 June 2012 and 
the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement 
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that 
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said 
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a)	 in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984;

	
(b)	 in our opinion:

	   i)	 the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of 
account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

	
	  ii)	 the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and
	
	 iii)	 the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 

accordance with the objects of the company;

(c)	 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and 
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of 
the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2012 and of the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows and 
changes in equity for the year then ended; and

	
(d)	 in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 

1980).

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
ATIF BIN ARSHAD

Date: September 26, 2012

ISLAMABAD

Auditors’ Report to the Members
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			 
			 
Authorized share capital			 
			 
370,000,000 (2011: 370,000,000)			 
ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each		   3,700,000 	  3,700,000 
30,000,000 (2011: 30,000,000) preference			 
shares of Rupees 10 each		   300,000 	  300,000 

			    4,000,000 	  4,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital	 3	  2,455,262 	  2,455,262 
Reserves	 4	  2,059,475 	  1,931,374 

Total equity		   4,514,737 	  4,386,636 
Surplus on revaluation of land and investment properties	 5	  3,673,825 	  3,685,497 
			 
LIABILITIES			 
			 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
			 
Long term financing	 6	  519,135 	  1,318,710 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 7	  20,501 	  42,843 
Deferred income tax liability	 8	  140,175 	  62,141 

			    679,811 	  1,423,694 
			 
CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
			 
Trade and other payables	 9	  1,161,892 	  834,691 
Accrued mark-up  	 10	  185,698 	  230,138 
Short term borrowings 	 11	  4,364,111 	  5,130,265 
Current portion of non-current liabilities	 12	  617,856 	  611,744 

			    6,329,557 	  6,806,838 

TOTAL LIABILITIES		   7,009,368 	  8,230,532 
			 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 13		
			 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   15,197,930 	  16,302,665 
			 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance Sheet 
As at June 30, 2012	

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
ASSETS	 		
			 
NON - CURRENT ASSETS			 
			 
Property, plant and equipment	 14	  6,161,381 	  6,747,691 
Intangible asset	 15	  6,284 	  9,563 
Investment properties	 16	  1,728,886 	  1,721,714 
Long term investments	 17	  3,248,680 	  3,248,880 
Long term deposits	 18	  50,515 	  35,758 

		  	  11,195,746 	  11,763,606 
			 
	
		
CURRENT ASSETS			 
			 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools	 19	  320,486 	  328,393 
Stock-in-trade  	 20	  1,529,949 	  1,657,252 
Trade debts	 21	  986,683 	  707,400 
Advances 	 22	  312,406 	  241,331 
Security deposits and short term prepayments	 23	  25,909 	  19,045 
Accrued Interest		   217 	  46 
Due from subsidiary companies		   -   	  601,144 
Other receivables	 24	  308,494 	  432,943 
Short term investments	 25	  611 	  600 
Taxation recoverable		   131,926 	  129,909 
Cash and bank balances	 26	  385,503 	  420,996 

			    4,002,184 	  4,539,059 
		

	
			 
			 
			 
TOTAL ASSETS		   15,197,930 	  16,302,665   

		  DIRECTOR
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	

			 
SALES	 27	  11,146,698 	  12,037,253 
COST OF SALES	 28	  (9,310,049)	  (10,213,705)

GROSS PROFIT		   1,836,649 	  1,823,548 
			 
DISTRIBUTION COST	 29	  (402,526)	  (425,063)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES	 30	  (210,356)	  (218,739)
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES	 31	  (116,011)	  (49,432)

			    (728,893)	  (693,234)

			    1,107,756 	  1,130,314 
OTHER OPERATING INCOME	 32	  67,273 	  595,770 

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS		   1,175,029 	  1,726,084 
			 
FINANCE COST	 33	  (870,740)	  (1,037,294)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION		   304,289 	  688,790 
			 
TAXATION	 34	  (187,860)	  (200,939)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION		   116,429 	  487,851 
			 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (Rupees)	 38	  0.47 	  2.20 
			 
			 
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Profit and Loss Account  
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)	

			 
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION		   116,429 	  487,851 
			 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS			 
			 
Reclassification adjustment for gain included in profit and loss		   -   	  (462,483)
			 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		   116,429 	  25,368 
			 
			 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
			
Cash generated from operations	 35	  1,886,680 	  2,998,394 
Finance cost paid		   (915,180)	  (1,094,698)
Workers’ profit participation fund paid		   (8)	  (13,397)
Income tax paid		   (111,843)	  (162,285)
Net increase in long term deposits		   (14,757)	  (871)

Net cash generated from operating activities		   844,892 	  1,727,143 
			
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
			
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment		   (173,308)	  (177,891)
Capital expenditure on intangible asset		   -   	  (9,836)
Capital expenditure on investment properties		   (5,539)	  -   
Investments made		   -   	  (174)
Interest received		   17,429 	  1,363 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		   319,062 	  13,132 
Proceeds from sale of investments		   543,876 	  8,715 
Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary company		   29 	  -   
Proceeds from sale of non current-assets classified as held for sale		   -   	  119,200 
Advance against purchase of land received back		   -   	  100,000 
Dividends received		   75 	  16,263 

Net cash from investing activities		   701,624 	  70,772 
			
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			 
			
Proceeds from long term financing 		   -   	  150,000 
Repayment of long term financing 		   (777,227)	  (595,077)
Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   (38,578)	  (70,523)
Short term borrowings - net		   (766,154)	  (940,170)
Dividend paid		   (50)	  -   

Net cash used in financing activities		   (1,582,009)	  (1,455,770)

Net  (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents		   (35,493)	  342,145 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   420,996 	  78,851 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   385,503 	  420,996 
			
			
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Cash Flow Statement  
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	 DIRECTOR
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1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
	
	 Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now Companies Ordinance, 1984) and listed on all Stock Exchanges in Pakistan. The registered 
office of the Company is situated at 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal activity of the Company is 
manufacturing of yarn and cloth, processing and stitching the cloth and trade of textile products. 

	
2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	
	 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:
	
	 2.1	 Basis of Preparation
	
	 a)	 Statement of Compliance 
	
		  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards 

as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified 
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

	
	 b)	 Accounting Convention
	
		  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the 

certain financial instruments, investment properties and freehold land which are carried at their 
fair values. These financial statements represent separate financial statements of the Company.  The 
consolidated financial statements of the Group are being issued separately.

	
	 c)	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
	
		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards 

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to 
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates 
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial 
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

	
		  Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments
	
		  Estimates with respect to residual values, useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits 

are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the 
value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the 
future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with 
a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

	
		  Inventories
	
		  Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices 

less estimated expenditure to make sales.
	

Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the year ended June 30, 2012
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	 	 Future estimation of export sales 
	
		  Deferred income tax calculation has been based on estimation of future ratio of export and local 

sale.
	
		  Taxation
	
		  In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes 

into account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues 
in the past.

		  Provisions for doubtful debts
	
		  The Company reviews its receivable against any provision required for any doubtful balances on an 

ongoing basis. The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.
	
		  Impairment of investment in subsidiary company
	
		  In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company’s investment in subsidiary company, 

the management considers future cash flows.
	
	 d)      	 Amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year and are 

relevant to the Company
	
		  The following amendments to published approved standards are mandatory for the Company’s 

accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2011:
	
		  IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 01 July 2011). The new disclosure requirements apply to transfer of financial assets. An 
entity transfers a financial asset when it transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of 
the asset to another party. These amendments are part of the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASBs) comprehensive review of off balance sheet activities. The amendments will promote 
transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding of the risk 
exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial 
position, particularly those involving securitization of financial asset. However, this amendment 
has no material impact on these financial statements. 

	
		  IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 01 January 2011). It clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of other comprehensive 
income for each component of equity, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes 
to the financial statements. However, this amendment has no material impact on these financial 
statements.

	
	 e)	 Interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are effective in 

current year but not relevant to the Company
	
		  There are other new interpretations and amendments to the published approved standards that 

are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2011 but are considered not to 
be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are 
therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
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	 f)         Standards and amendments to published approved standards that are not yet effective but 
relevant to the Company

	
		  Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are 

mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012 or later 
periods: 

	
		  IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 01 January 2013). The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has amended 
the accounting requirements and disclosures related to offsetting of financial assets and financial 
liabilities by issuing amendments to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and IFRS 7. These 
amendments are the result of IASB and US Financial Accounting Standard Board undertaking a joint 
project to address the differences in their respective accounting standards regarding offsetting 
of financial instruments. The clarifying amendments to IAS 32 are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2014. However, these amendments are not expected to have a 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.  

	
		  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015). It 

addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
This is the first part of a new standard on classification and measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities that shall replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. 
IFRS 9 has two measurement categories: amortized cost and fair value. All equity instruments are 
measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding 
it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest. For liabilities, 
the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. These include amortized-cost accounting 
for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in 
cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due 
to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income 
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. This change shall mainly affect financial 
institutions. There shall be no impact on the Company’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the 
new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value 
through profit or loss, and the Company does not have any such liabilities.

	
		  IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

01 January 2013). Concurrent with the issuance of IFRS 10, the IASB has also issued IFRS 11 ‘Joint 
Arrangements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’, IAS 27 (revised 2011) ‘Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 (revised 2011) ‘Investments in Associates’. The 
objective of IFRS 10 is to have a single basis for consolidation for all entities, regardless of the 
nature of the investee, and that basis is control. The definition of control includes three elements: 
power over an investee, exposure or rights to variable returns of the investee and the ability to 
use power over the investee to affect the investor’s returns. IFRS 10 replaces those parts of IAS 27 
‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’ that address when and how an investor should 
prepare consolidated financial statements and replaces Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) 
12 ‘Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities’ in its entirety. The management of the Company is 
in the process of evaluating the impacts of the aforesaid standard on the Company’s financial 
statements.

	
		  IFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

01 January 2013). This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in 
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off-
balance sheet vehicles. This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 
financial statements.
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		  IFRS 13 ‘Fair value Measurement’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 
2013). This standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise 
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements 
for use across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do 
not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied 
where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP. This 
standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

	
		  IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 01 July 2012). The main change resulting from this amendment is the requirement for 
entities to group items presented in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) on the basis of whether 
they are potentially recycled to profit or loss (reclassification adjustments). The amendment does 
not address which items are presented in OCI. However, this amendment is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

	
		  IAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective for annual periods beginning on 

or after 01 January 2013). This amendment requires that spare parts, stand-by equipment and 
servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment in IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. However, this 
amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

	
		  On 17 May 2012, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2009 – 2011 Cycle, incorporating 

amendments to five IFRSs more specifically in  IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 
32 ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that are considered relevant to the Company’s financial 
statements. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 
2013. These amendments are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial 
statements and have therefore not been analyzed in detail.

	
	 g)	 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are not 

yet effective and not considered relevant to the Company
	
		  There are other standards, amendments to published approved standards and new interpretations 

that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012 but are considered 
not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and 
are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

	
	 2.2	 Employee benefit
	
		  The Company operates an approved funded provident fund scheme covering all permanent 

employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and employees at the rate 
of 8.33 percent of basic salary and cost of living allowance to the fund. The Company’s contributions 
to the fund are charged to profit and loss account.

	
	 2.3	 Taxation
	
		  Current
	
		  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with 

the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing 
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current 
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous 
years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.
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		  Deferred
	
		  Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 

differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary  differences and deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

	
		  Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 

reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax 
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

	
	 2.4	 Provisions
	
		  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

	
	 2.5	 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation
	
		  Owned 
	
		  Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of property, plant 
and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction 
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working 
condition. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Capital 
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

	
		  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss account during the period in which they are 
incurred.

	
	 	 Leased
	
		  Leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 

as finance lease. Assets subject to finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease 
term at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the 
fair value of the leased assets, each determined at the inception of the lease.

	
		  The related rental obligation net of finance cost, is included in liabilities against assets subject to 

finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of 
payments. 

	
		  Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant 

rate on the balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss account over the 
lease term.

	
		  Depreciation of assets subject to finance lease is recognised in the same manner as for owned 

assets. Depreciation of the leased assets is charged to profit and loss account. 
	



55

		  Depreciation
	
		  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to profit and loss account applying 

the reducing balance method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the asset over 
their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 14.1. Depreciation on additions is charged 
from the month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in 
which the assets are disposed off. The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed by the 
management, at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

		  Derecognition
	
		  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset is derecognised.

	
	 2.6     Investment properties
	
		  Land and buildings held for capital appreciation or to earn rental income are classified as investment 

properties. Investment properties are carried at fair value which is based on active market prices, 
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. 
The valuation of the properties is carried out with sufficient regularity.

	
		  Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is recognised in the 

profit and loss account for the year in which it arises. 
	
	 2.7     Intangible assets
	
		  Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognised at 

cost, which comprise purchase price, non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable 
expenditure relating to their implementation and customization. After initial recognition an 
intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. 
Intangible assets are amortized from the month, when these assets are available for use, using 
the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated 
useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company. The useful life and 
amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.   

	
	 2.8     Investments 
	
		  Classification of investment is made on the basis of intended purpose for holding such investment.  

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase 
and re-evaluates such designation on regular basis.

	
		  Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to 

acquisition, except for “investment at fair value through profit or loss” which is initially measured at 
fair value.

	
		  The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 

that investments are impaired. If any such evidence exists, the Company applies the provisions of 
IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to all investments, except investment 
in subsidiary company, which are tested for impairment in accordance with the provisions of IAS 36 
‘Impairment of Assets’.

	



56

	 a) 	 Investment at fair value through profit or loss 
	
		  Investment classified as held-for-trading and those designated as such are included in this category. 

Investments are classified as held-for-trading if these are acquired for the purpose of selling in 
the short term. Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in profit and loss 
account.

	
	 b)	 Held-to-maturity 
	
		  Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-

maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments 
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Other long term 
investments that are intended to be held to maturity are subsequently measured at amortized cost. 
This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus 
the cumulative amortization, using the effective interest method, of any difference between the 
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. For investments carried at amortized cost, 
gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the investments are derecognised 
or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

	
	 c)	 Available-for-sale
	
		  Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response 

to need for liquidity, or changes to interest rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-
sale. After initial recognition, investments which are classified as available-for-sale are measured 
at fair value. Gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognised directly in statement 
of other comprehensive income until the investment is sold, de-recognised or is determined to 
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in statement of other 
comprehensive income is included in profit and loss account. These are sub-categorized as under:

	
		  Quoted
	
		  For investments that are actively traded in organized capital markets, fair value is determined by 

reference to stock exchange quoted market bids at the close of business on the balance sheet date. 
	
	 	 Unquoted
	
		  Fair value of unquoted investments is determined on the basis of appropriate valuation techniques 

as allowed by IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. 
	
	 d)	 Investment in subsidiary company
	
		  Investment in subsidiary company is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, in accordance with 

the provisions of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’.
	
	 2.9    	 Inventories
	
		  Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock / rags, are stated at lower of cost and net 

realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:
	
		  Stores, spare parts and loose tools	
		
		  Useable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while 

items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising 
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.	
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		  Stock-in-trade	
		
		  Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods are determined as follows:	
		
		  (i)	 For raw materials:	 Annual average basis.
		  (ii)	 For work-in-process and finished goods:	 Average manufacturing cost including a portion of 
			   production overheads.
		
		  Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

Waste stock / rags are valued at net realizable value.	
		
		  Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.	
		
	 2.10	 Trade and other receivables	
	
		  Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice value less an estimate made for 

doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written 
off when identified.

	
	 2.11	 Borrowings
	
		  Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any 

difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss 
account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

	 2.12	 Borrowing cost
	
		  Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of 

commissioning of respective qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term 
finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognised in profit and loss account.

	
	 2.13   	Trade and other payables
	
		  Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognised at fair value, which is 

normally the transaction cost.
	
	 2.14	 Cash and cash equivalents
	
		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit 

accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

	
	 2.15	 Share capital
	
		  Ordinary shares are classified as share capital.
	
	 2.16	 Revenue recognition
	
		  Revenue from different sources is recognised as under:
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		  a)	 Revenue from local sales is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers while in case of 
export sales it is recognised on the date of bill of lading.

	
		  b)	 Dividend on equity investments is recognised when right to receive the dividend is established.
	
		  c)	 Profit on deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the 

amounts outstanding and rates applicable thereon.
	
	 2.17	 Foreign currencies
	
		  These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional 

currency. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 
Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, while the transactions 
in foreign currency during the year are initially recorded in functional currency at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the transaction date. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak 
Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are 
determined. Exchange gains and losses are recorded in the profit and loss account.

	
	 2.18	 Financial instruments
	
		  Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include investments, deposits, trade debts, 

advances, accrued interest, other receivables, cash and bank balances, long-term financing, 
liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, short-term borrowings, accrued mark-up and 
trade and other payables etc. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of instrument. Initial recognition is made at fair value 
plus transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition, except for “financial instrument at fair 
value through profit or loss” which are initially measured at fair value.

	
		  Financial assets are derecognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that 

comprise the financial asset. The Company loses such control if it realizes the rights to benefits 
specified in contract, the rights expire or the Company surrenders those rights. Financial liabilities 
are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement (except available for sale investments) and 
derecognition is charged to the profit and loss currently. The particular measurement methods 
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

	
	 2.19	 Impairment
	
	 a)	 Financial assets
	
		  A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events 

had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
	
		  An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as 

a difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of available for sale 
financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair value.

	
		  Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The 

remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics.
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	 b)	 Non-financial assets
	
		  The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the 
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in 
profit and loss account except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against the 
related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on 
revaluation of that asset. 

	
	 2.20	 Derivative financial instruments
	
		  Derivative that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the balance sheet at estimated 

fair value with corresponding effect to profit and loss account. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

	
	 2.21	 Segment reporting
	
		  Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating 

segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the transactions with 
any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the chief executive officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

	
		  Segment results that are reported to the chief executive officer include items directly attributable 

to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, 
assets, liabilities and other balances which can not be allocated to a particular segment on a 
reasonable basis are reported as unallocated. 

	
		  The Company has three reportable business segments. Spinning (Producing different quality of 

yarn using natural and artificial fibers), Weaving (Producing different quality of greige fabric using 
yarn) and Processing and Home Textile (Processing greige fabric for production of printed and dyed 
fabric and manufacturing of home textile articles).

	
		  Transaction among the business segments are recorded at arm’s length prices using admissible 

valuation methods. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.
	
	 2.22	 Dividend and other appropriations
	
		  Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s 

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared and other appropriations are 
recognised in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

	
	 2.23	 Off setting
	
		  Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial 

statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL		
					   
		  2012	 2011		  2012	 2011
		  (Number of Shares)			   (Rupees in thousand)

		   1,596,672 	  1,596,672 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each allotted on	  
				    reorganisation of Kohinoor Industries Limited	 15,967 	  15,967	

		
		   26,156,000 	  26,156,000 	 Ordinary shares allotted under scheme 
				    of arrangement of  merger of Part II of 
				    Maple Leaf Electric Company Limited	 261,560 	  261,560	

		
		   26,858,897 	  26,858,897 	 Ordinary shares allotted under scheme 
				    of arrangement of merger of		   
				    Kohinoor Raiwind Mills Limited and 
				    Kohinoor Gujar Khan Mills Limited	 268,589 	  268,589	

	
		   38,673,628 	  38,673,628 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued 
				    as fully paid bonus shares 		   386,736 	  386,736 
						    
		  152,241,019 	  152,241,019 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued 
				    as fully paid in cash 		   1,522,410 	  1,522,410 
						    
	 	 245,526,216 	  245,526,216 			    2,455,262 	  2,455,262 
						    

3.1	 Zimpex (Private) Limited which is an associated company held  45,496,057 (2011: 45,496,057) ordinary 
shares of Rupees 10 each as at 30 June 2012.

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
4.	 RESERVES			 
				  
	 Composition of reserves is as follows:			 

	 Capital			 
				  
	 Share premium 	 4.1	  144,919 	  144,919 
				  
	 Revenue			 
				  
	 General reserve		   1,450,491 	  1,450,491 
	 Unappropriated profit 		   464,065 	  335,964 

				     1,914,556 	  1,786,455 

				     2,059,475 	  1,931,374   
				  
				  
	 4.1	 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 83(2) of the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984.			 
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
5.	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF LAND AND 
	 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES			 
				  
	 Investment properties		   1,263,592 	  1,263,592 
	 Freehold land		   2,410,233 	  2,421,905
 
				     3,673,825 	  3,685,497  
				  
6.	 LONG TERM FINANCING 			 
				  
	 From banking companies and other financial 
	 institutions - secured			 
				  
	 Long term loans	 6.1	  846,817 	  1,172,199 
	 Long term musharika 	 6.2	  254,586 	  703,748
 
				     1,101,403 	  1,875,947 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 	 6.4	  587,062 	  564,714 

				     514,341 	  1,311,233 
	 Other loans - unsecured			 
				  
	 Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited (KSML)	 6.5	  4,794 	  4,794 
	 Kohinoor Industries Limited (KIL)		   -   	  2,683
 
				     4,794 	  7,477
 
				     519,135 	  1,318,710 
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NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

Allied Bank 
Limited

Saudi Pak 
Industrial 
and Agricultural 
Investment 
Company Limited

	 88,194 

	 101,206 

	  41,667 

	  -   

	  -   

	  93,750 

	  100,000 
	

	  150,006 
	

	  50,000 
	

	  31,836 
	

	  7,232 
	

	  125,000 

	  100,000 
	

	  300,000 

	
	  50,000 
	

	  76,000 
	

	  300,000 
	

	  250,000 

Quarterly

-

Quarterly

-

-

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

3 Months 
KIBOR + 2%

7%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 2%

SBP 
Refinance 
rate + 2%

7%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.7%

Thirty two equal 
monthly installments 
commenced from 
July 2011 and ending 
on February 2014.

Twenty four equal 
quarterly installments 
after expiry of grace 
period of one and a 
half year commenced 
from April 2005 and 
ending on September 
2014. 

Thirty two monthly 
i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commenced from July 
2011 and ending on 
February 2014.

Ten equal quarterly 
i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commenced on April 
2008 and ended on 
July 2011 including 
grace period of ten 
months.

Sixteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from July 
2007 and ended on 
April 2012 including 
grace period of one 
year.

Eight equal semi 
annual installments 
commenced from 
December 2008 
and ending on June 
2013 including grace 
period of one year .

First pari passu charge 
over all present and 
future current assets 
of the Company for 
Rupees 447 million. 
Exclusive charge on 
plant and machinery 
imported under LTF 
facility for Rupees 400 
million and personal 
guarantees of the 
sponsor directors.	
		
First pari passu charge 
over fixed assets of 
Raiwind Division and 
personal guarantees 
of the sponsor 
directors.		
	
		

Collateral covering 
the exposure 
including charges 
on both current 
and fixed assets of 
the Company and 
personal guarantees 
of the sponsor 
directors.		
	
Exclusive charge 
on the plant and 
machinery imported 
under the LTF facility 
for Rupees 400 
million and personal 
guarantees of the 
sponsor directors.	
		
First exclusive 
charge on imported 
machinery.		
	
		

	
First pari passu 
charge by way of 
hypothecation on all 
present and future 
plant and machinery 
of the Company and 
by way of mortgage 
on land measuring 121 
Acres, two kanal and 
one marla, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road, 
Rawalpindi with 25% 
margin.	

LENDER 2012 2011 TOTAL
FACILITY

INTEREST
REPRICING

INTEREST
PAYABLE

RATE OF
INTEREST PER 

ANNUM

NUMBER OF
INSTALLMENTS

SECURITY

……….RUPEES IN THOUSAND……..
6.1	 Long term loans
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Bank Al-Falah 
Limited

Faysal Bank 
Limited

Pak Libya Holding 
Company Limited

Total

Standard 
Chartered Bank 
(Pakistan) Limited

Allied Bank 
Limited

The Bank of 
Khyber

Total

	  296,250 

	
	  193,500 
	

	  32,250 
	

	  522,000 
	
	 846,817 

	  129,085 

	
	  61,001 
	

	  64,500 
	

	 254,586 

	  417,500 
	

	  250,500 
	

	  40,125 
	

	  708,125 
	
	 1,172,199 

	  167,085 
	

	  456,413 
	

	  80,250 

	
	 703,748 

	  500,000 
	

	  300,000 
	

	  50,000 
	

	  850,000 
	
	 1,926,000 

	  200,000 

	
	  568,750 
	

	  100,000 
	

	 868,750 

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

First joint pari passu 
charge on surplus 
land for Rupees 467 
million. 		
	
		
First pari passu charge 
over fixed assets of 
the Company for 
Rupees 400 million 
with 25% margin.	
		
First joint pari passu 
charge on surplus 
land for Rupees 66.67 
million. 		
	

First pari passu charge 
on land at Rawalpindi 
Division of Rupees 
266.66 million.	
		
		
First pari passu 
charge over movable 
fixed assets of 
Rawalpindi Division 
and surplus piece of 
land measuring 43 
Acres, 7 kanal and 12 
marlas, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road 
of Rupees 933.33 
million.		
	
First pari passu charge 
over land measuring 
121 Acres, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road 
of Rupees 106.666 
million.		
	

Syndicated term finance (Note 6.3)

6.2	 Long term musharika (Note 6.3)

6.3 	 Syndicated term finance facility and musharika facility was arranged by Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited as syndicate 
agent and investment agent.

	
6.4 	 Current portion of long term loan and musharika include overdue installments amounting to Rupees 66.154 million (2011: 32.678 

million).
	
6.5 	 Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited (KSML)
	
	 Liability has been settled after the reporting period through an agreement with KSML.

LENDER 2012 2011 TOTAL
FACILITY

INTEREST
REPRICING

INTEREST
PAYABLE

RATE OF
INTEREST PER 

ANNUM

NUMBER OF
INSTALLMENTS

SECURITY

……….RUPEES IN THOUSAND……..
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
7.	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE			 
				  
	 Future minimum lease payments		   54,165 	  101,238 
	 Less: Un-amortized finance charges		   2,870 	  11,365
 
	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		   51,295 	  89,873 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities	 12	  30,794 	  47,030 

				     20,501 	  42,843 
				     
				  
	 7.1	 The future minimum lease payments have been discounted at implicit interest rates which range 

from 6.30% to 17.40% (2011: from 6.00% to 18.85%) per annum to arrive at their present values. The 
lease rentals are payable in monthly and quarterly installments. In case of any default, an additional 
charge at the rate of 0.1 percent per day shall be payable. Taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance 
costs are to be borne by the Company. The lease agreements carry renewal and purchase option at 
the end of the lease term. There are no financial restrictions in lease agreements. These are secured 
by deposit of Rupees 20.874 million (2011: Rupees 22.098 million) included in long term deposits, 
demand promissory notes, personal guarantees and pledge of sponsors’ shares in public limited 
companies.

	 7.2	 Future minimum lease payments and their present values are regrouped as under:		
		

			                                30 June 2012	                                  30 June 2011

			   Not later	 Later than	
Not later

	 Later than
			 

than one
	 one year	

than one
	 one year

			   year	 but not later 	
year

	 but not later
				    than five years		  than five years

		   	                                                                                 ------------------(Rupees in thousand)--------------- 
			 
		  Future minimum lease payments	  33,434 	  20,731 	  55,574 	  45,664 
		  Less: Unamortized finance charge	  2,640 	  230 	  8,544 	  2,821 
		  Present value of future minimum 
		     lease payments	  30,794 	  20,501 	  47,030 	  42,843 

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
8.	 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY 			 
	 This comprises of following :			 
				  
	 Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary 
	    differences in respect of:			 
	           Accelerated tax depreciation		   402,658 	  394,104 
	 Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary 
	    differences in respect of:			 
				  
	 Unused tax losses		   (262,483)	  (331,963)
				  
			    140,175 	  62,141
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
9.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
				  
	 Creditors		   683,385 	  615,087 
	 Accrued liabilities		   163,912 	  128,401 
	 Advances from customers		   68,318 	  11,089 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 9.1	  40,032 	  20,905 
	 Workers’ welfare fund		   7,686 	  7,686 
	 Payable to subsidiary company	 9.2	  131,128 	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend		   2,631 	  2,681 
	 Withholding tax payable		   2,400 	  4,629 
	 Payable to employees’ provident fund trust		   53,001 	  36,287 
	 Others		   9,399 	  7,926 

			    1,161,892 	  834,691

	 9.1	 Workers’ profit participation fund			 
					   
		  Balance as on 01 July		   20,905 	  21,669 
		  Add:   Interest for the year	 33	  2,964 	  2,445 
		             Provision for the year	 31	  16,171 	  10,188 
		  Less:  Payments during the year		   (8)	  (13,397)

				     40,032 	  20,905 
					   
	 9.1.1	 The Company retains workers’ profit participation fund for its business operations till the date 

of allocation to workers. Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers’ 
Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Company till the date of allocation to workers.	
	

	 9.2	 This represents amount payable to subsidiary company including mark-up thereon net of 
adjustments of sales tax refunds of the Company against sales tax liability of subsidiary company 
including mark-up thereon and receivable against allocation of pool expenses.

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
10.	 ACCRUED MARK-UP			 

	 Long term financing 		   78,022 	  88,006 
	 Short term borrowings		   107,374 	  140,535 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   302 	  1,597 

				     185,698 	  230,138 
11.	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS			 
				  
	 From banking companies - secured			 
	 Short term running finances 	 11.1	  140,493 	  1,879,564 
	 Other short term finances	 11.2	  3,088,618 	  1,815,701 
	 State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) refinances	 11.3	  1,135,000 	  1,435,000 

				     4,364,111 	  5,130,265

	 11.1	 The running finance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 165 million (2011: 
Rupees 2,184 million). The rates of mark-up range from 3.49% to 25% (2011: from 3.49% to 21.90%) 
per annum. These arrangements are secured by pledge of raw material, charge on current assets of 
the Company including  hypothecation of work-in-process, stores and spares, letters of credit, firm 
contracts, book debts and personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.
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	 11.2	 The other short term finance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 4,524.5 
million (2011: Rupees 2,426 million). The rates of mark-up range from 4.50% to 25.00% (2011: from 
13.45% to 25.00%) per annum. These arrangements are secured by pledge of raw material, charge 
on current assets of the Company including  hypothecation of work-in-process, stores and spares, 
letters of credit, firm contracts, book debts and personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.

		
	 11.3	 The export refinance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 1,135 million 

(2011: Rupees 1,435 million). The rate of mark-up is 11.00 %  (2011: from 8.50% to 11.00%) per 
annum. These arrangements are secured by way of charge on current assets of the Company and 
personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
12.	 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
				  
	 Long term financing 	 6	  587,062 	  564,714 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 7	  30,794 	  47,030 

				     617,856 	  611,744 
				  
13.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 

	 13.1	 Contingencies

	 a) 	 The Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore for tax year 2003  
under section 129/132 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, which is pending adjudication. The tax loss was 
restricted to Rupees 27.540 million against declared loss of Rupees 122.933 million thereby creating a 
demand of Rupees 12.396 million. In addition to the above, another appeal for tax year 2003 against 
order under section 221 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated 24 January 2009, on the disallowance of 
depreciation expense of Rupees 62.665 million has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 
which is pending adjudication. This is a cross appeal. Although the learned Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (Appeals) has already annulled the order under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, vide order dated 30 July 2009, the Taxation Officer  has illegally repeated the original assessment. 
Therefore, an appeal has also been filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 187 of 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2003, the appellate order of which is pending. The revenue 
involved on account of penalty was Rupees 17.484 million. The Company has strong grounds and is 
expecting favourable outcome.

		
	 b) 	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under section 122(5A) / 

122(1) / 129 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2004 which is pending adjudication. The loss for 
the year has been assessed at Rupees 255.684 million against declared loss of Rupees 255.886 million 
creating refund of Rupees 7.498 million. Department has also filed cross appeal mainly on issue of 
chargeability of 3.5% tax on local purchases amounting to Rupees 950.547 million. The Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue has set-aside the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and remanded back 
to Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) with the direction to readjudicate the issue after considering 
the evidences produced. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.

		
	 c) 	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under section 122(5A) / 

122(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2005, which is pending adjudication. The Income for 
the year has been assessed at Rupees 113.440 million against declared loss of Rupees 205.576 million 
creating payable of Rupees 74.576 million. Department has also filed cross appeal mainly on issue of 
chargeability of 3.5% tax on local purchases  amounting to Rupees  828.839 million. The Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue has set-aside the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and remanded back 
to Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) with the direction to readjudicate the issue after considering 
the evidences produced. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.
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	 d) 	 An appeal for the tax year 2010 has been filed before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under section 
221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2010, which is pending adjudication. The income for 
the year has been assessed, creating payable amounting to Rupees 20.789 million. The appeal has been 
filed on the issue of minimum tax at the rate of 0.5% on turnover can be adjusted against tax deducted 
on exports. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.

		
	 e) 	 The Company and the tax authorities have filed appeals before different appellate authorities regarding 

sales tax and custom duty matters. Pending the outcome of appeals filed by the Company and tax 
authorities, no provision has been made in these financial statements which on the basis adopted by 
the authorities would amount to Rupees 64.02 million (2011: Rupees 35.555 million), since the Company 
has strong grounds against the assessments framed by the relevant authorities.

		
	 f) 	 The Company has filed recovery suits in civil courts of Rupees 7.908 million (2011: Rupees 8.390 million) 

against various suppliers and customers for goods supplied by/ to them. Pending the outcome of the 
cases, no provision there against has been made in these financial statements since the Company is 
confident about favourable outcome of the cases.

		
	 g) 	 The Company has filed a suit before Civil Court, Rawalpindi against demand raised by Sui Northern Gas 

Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 125.830 million. No provision has been made in these 
financial statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome.

		
	 h) 	 An appeal has been filed by Rawalpindi Cantonment Board (RCB) before Supreme Court of Pakistan 

against judgement passed by Lahore High Court whereby demand created by RCB of Rupees 7.812 
million (2011: Rupees 7.812 million) was set aside. No provision has been made in these financial 
statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome of the case. 

		
	 i) 	 Three cases are pending before the Punjab Labour Appellate Tribunal, Shadman 1, Lahore regarding the 

reinstatement into service of three employees dismissed from their jobs. No provision has been made in 
these financial statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome of the cases.

		
	 j) 	 The Company has not recognised fuel adjustment charges amounting to Rupees 75.596 million (2011: 

Rupees Nil) notified by National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA), as the Company has 
obtained stay from Honorable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad against payment of fuel adjustment 
charges as billed by electric supply companies (IESCO/LESCO). The management based on advice of the 
legal counsel, believes that it has strong grounds of appeal and payment / accrual of such charges will 
not be required.

		
	 k)  	 Guarantees  issued by  various  commercial banks,  in respect of  financial  and  operational obligations 

of the Company, to various institutions and corporate bodies aggregate Rupees 243.391 million as at 30 
June 2012 (2011: Rupees 249.620  million).

		
	 13.2	 Commitments in respect of letters of credit other than for capital expenditure amount to Rupees 185.585 

million (2011: Rupees 42.070 million).			     
			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
14.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT			 
				  
	 Operating fixed assets (Note 14.1)			 
		  - Owned assets 	 	  6,008,509 	  6,578,979 
		  - Leased assets 		   144,287 	  166,964 
	 Capital work in progress (Note 14.2)		   8,585 	  1,748
 
			    	 6,161,381 	  6,747,691 
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
	 14.1.3	 Depreciation charged during the year has 
	    been allocated as follows:			 
					   
		  Cost of sales	 28	  331,958 	  338,107 
		  Administrative expenses	 30	  15,287 	  19,638 
				     347,245 	  357,745  
	 14.2	 Capital work in progress			 

		  Civil works and buildings		   -   	  105 
		  Plant and machinery		   8,585 	  1,643  
				     8,585 	  1,748 
15.	 INTANGIBLE ASSET			 

	 Computer software

	 Year ended 30 June 			 

	 Opening net book value 		   9,563 	  -   
	 Additions		   -   	  9,836 
	 Amortization	 30	  (3,279)	  (273)

	 Closing net book value		   6,284 	  9,563 
				  
	 Cost as at 30 June 		   9,836 	  9,836 
	 Accumulated amortization		   (3,552)	  (273)

	 Net book value 		   6,284 	  9,563 

	 Amortization rate (per annum)		  33.33%	 33.33%
					   
16.	 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES			 

	 Year ended 30 June			 

	 Opening net book amount		   1,721,714 	  1,720,835 
	 Addition during the year		   5,539 	  -   
	 Fair value gain		   1,633 	  879

	 Closing net book amount		   1,728,886 	  1,721,714 
					   
	 16.1	 The fair value of investment properties comprising land and building situated at Lahore and 

Rawalpindi have been determined at 30 June 2012 by an independent valuer having relevant 
professional  qualifications. The fair value was determined on the basis of professional assessment 
of the current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same location and condition. 	
		

			   2012	 2011
17.	 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS	 Note	 (Rupees in thousand)			
	         Investment in subsidiary companies
		  2012	 2011
		  (Number of shares)
				    Maple Leaf Cement Factory 
				    Limited - quoted			 
		  340,410,425 	  340,410,425 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
				    each fully paid	 17.1	  3,248,680 	  3,248,680 
				    Equity held 64.50%  (2011: 64.63%)
			 
				    Concept Trading (Private) Limited - unquoted		
		  - 	  19,998 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid	  - 	  200 
				    Equity held Nil% (2011: 99.99%)			 
			 
						      3,248,680 	  3,248,880 
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	 17.1	 Based on value in use calculations as at 30 June 2012, there was no impairment loss on investment 
in subsidiary company (tested for impairment under IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”). The recoverable 
amount of investment in Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - subsidiary company was determined 
by an independent valuer.

		
	 17.2	 During the year, Concept Trading (Private) Limited (wholly owned subsidiary company) was wound up 

on 13 August  2011 after complying with all regulatory and procedural requirements. The Company 
held 99.99% of paid up capital of Concept Trading (Private) Limited. Amount received / adjusted on 
members’ voluntary winding up of subsidiary company amounted to Rupees 537.537 million.

			   2012	  2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
18.	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS			 
				  
	 Security deposits 		   64,220 	  43,380 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current assets 	 23	  (13,705)	  (7,622)

				     50,515 	  35,758 
				  
19.	 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS 			 
				  
	 Stores 	 19.1	  226,381 	  270,494 
	 Spare parts and loose tools		   95,489 	  58,643 

				     321,870 	  329,137 
	 Less: Provision against slow moving items	 19.2	  (1,384)	  (744)

				     320,486 	  328,393  
				  
	 19.1	 This includes stores in transit of Rupees 6.032 million 
		     (2011: Rupees 3.081 million).
			 
	 19.2	 Provision against slow moving items			 
					   
		  As at 01 July 		   744 	  -   
		  Add: Provision for the year	 31	  640 	  744

		  As at 30 June		   1,384 	  744 
					   
	 19.3	 Stores and spare parts include items which may result
		    in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.				 

		
20.	 STOCK-IN-TRADE			 
				  
	 Raw materials	 20.1	  809,793 	  530,846 
	 Work-in-process		   409,287 	  391,129 
	 Finished goods		   310,869 	  735,277 

				     1,529,949 	  1,657,252  
				  
	 20.1	 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees 140.422 million (2011: Rupees 210.034 million).

	 20.2	 Stock in trade of Rupees 0.941 million (2011: Rupees 303.684 million) is being carried at net 
realizable value. 

	 20.3	 The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognised during the 
year was Rupees 0.082 million (2011: Rupees 47.216 million).
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)

21.	 TRADE DEBTS			 
				  
	 Considered good:			 
	 Secured (against letters of credit)		   374,803 	  166,654 
	 Unsecured		   611,880 	  540,746 

				     986,683 	  707,400 
	 Considered doubtful:			 
	 Others - unsecured		   6,367 	  2,274 
	 Less: 	 Provision for doubtful debts			 
		  As at 01 July 		   2,274 	  -   
	 Add: 	 Provision for the year	 31	  4,093 	  2,274
 
		  As at 30 June		   6,367 	  2,274 

				     -   	  -     
				  
	 21.1	 As at 30 June  2012, trade debts of Rupees 522.637 million (2011: Rupees 493.844 million) were past 

due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no 
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows: 		
	

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	
		  Upto 1 month		   270,527 	  293,516 
		  1 to 6 months		   133,246 	  167,262 
		  More than 6 months		   118,864 	  33,066 
					   
				     522,637 	  493,844 
					   
	 21.2	 As at 30 June  2012, trade debts of Rupees 6.367 million (2011: Rupees 2.274 million) were impaired 

and provided for. The ageing of these trade debts was more than three years. 		
	

22.	 ADVANCES 			 
				  
	 Considered good :			 
	 Employees - interest free			 
	   - Executives		   2,056 	  1,390 
	   - Other employees		   571 	  224 

				     2,627 	  1,614 
	 Advances to suppliers		   299,919 	  222,985 
	 Letters of credit		   9,860 	  16,732 

				     312,406 	  241,331 
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)

23.	 SECURITY DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS			 
				  
	 Current portion of long term deposits	 18	  13,705 	  7,622 
	 Short term prepayments		   12,204 	  11,423 

			    25,909 	  19,045 
				  
24.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES			 
	 Considered good:			 
				  
	 Sales tax refundable		   136,385 	  242,402 
	 Custom duty receivable	  	  3,642 	  3,642 
	 Mark up rate support receivable from financial institution		   5,983 	  11,689 
	 Export rebate		   38,591 	  42,664 
	 Insurance claims		   5,834 	  281 
	 Research and development support		   472 	  472 
	 Duty draw back		   95,792 	  119,555 
	 Others		   21,795 	  12,238 
				  
			    308,494 	  432,943 
				  
25.	 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS			 
				  
	 Investments at fair value through profit or loss 			 
				  
	 Quoted companies		   600 	  702 
	 Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of  fair value during the year		   11 	  (102)
				  
			    611 	  600 
				  
26.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 
				  
	 Cash in hand		   944 	  1,301 
				  
	 Cash at bank:			 
	  - On current accounts		   48,964 	  98,651 
	  - On saving accounts 	 26.1	  335,595 	  321,044
 
			    384,559 	  419,695
 
			    385,503 	  420,996 
				  
	 26.1	 The balances in saving accounts carry interest ranging from 0.26% to 11.50% (2011: from 0.20% to 

12%) per annum.			 
				  
	 26.2	 The balances in current and deposit accounts include US $  453,879  (2011: US $ 217,802).		
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
27.	 SALES			 
				  
	 Export	  27.2 	  5,918,740 	  6,661,344 
	 Local	  27.1 	  5,190,240 	  5,213,062 
	 Duty drawback		   -   	  116,458 
	 Export rebate		   37,718 	  46,389 

			    11,146,698 	  12,037,253 
				  
				  
	 27.1	 Local sales		   5,190,240 	  5,213,384 
		  Less : Sales tax		   -   	  322
 
			    5,190,240 	  5,213,062 
				  
	 27.2	 Exchange gain due  to currency  rate fluctuations  relating  to  export sales amounting to  Rupees 

61.043 million (2011: Rupees 15.966 million) has been included in export sales.	

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
28.	 COST OF SALES			 
				  
	 Raw materials consumed	 28.1	  4,396,264 	  5,349,247 
	 Cloth and yarn procured and consumed		   1,297,425 	  1,443,577 
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits 	 28.2	  673,839 	  699,683 
	 Dyes and chemicals consumed		   320,531 	  341,963 
	 Processing charges		   14,252 	  13,508 
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed		   734,420 	  513,192 
	 Packing materials consumed		   266,852 	  325,142 
	 Fuel and power		   728,286 	  575,707 
	 Repair and maintenance		   89,217 	  55,592 
	 Insurance		   22,863 	  21,969 
	 Other factory overheads		   27,892 	  33,860 
	 Depreciation	 14.1.3	  331,958 	  338,107 

			    8,903,799 	  9,711,547 
	 Work-in-process			 
	 Opening stock		   391,129 	  891,618 
	 Closing stock		   (409,287)	  (391,129)

			    (18,158)	  500,489 

	 Cost of goods manufactured		   8,885,641 	  10,212,036 
				  
	 Finished goods			 
	 Opening stock		   735,277 	  736,946 
	 Closing stock		   (310,869)	  (735,277)

			    424,408 	  1,669
 
	 Cost of sales 		   9,310,049 	  10,213,705 
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			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	 28.1	 Raw materials consumed
			 
		  Opening stock		   357,749 	  709,197 
		  Add: Purchased during the year		   4,707,886 	  4,997,799 

				     5,065,635 	  5,706,996 
		  Less: Closing stock		   (669,371)	  (357,749)

				     4,396,264 	  5,349,247 
				  
	 28.2	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 16.645 million 

(2011: Rupees 16.631 million) by the Company.
			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
29.	 DISTRIBUTION COST			 
				  
	 Salaries and other benefits 	 29.1	  42,947 	  39,374 
	 Outward freight and handling		   41,220 	  30,995 
	 Clearing and forwarding		   183,587 	  232,933 
	 Commission to selling agents		   93,549 	  83,955 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   13,523 	  13,732 
	 Insurance		   274 	  505 
	 Vehicles’ running expenses		   3,936 	  3,389 
	 Electricity, gas and water		   1,280 	  910 
	 Postage, telephone and fax		   2,589 	  2,247 
	 Legal and professional		   -   	  80 
	 Sales promotion and advertisement		   15,626 	  13,804 
	 Miscellaneous expense		   3,995 	  3,139

			    402,526 	  425,063 
				  
	 29.1	 Salaries and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 1.397 million (2011: 

Rupees 1.399 million) by the Company.
			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
30.	 ADMINISTRATIVE  EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries and other benefits 	 30.1	  107,157 	  107,214 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   9,741 	  6,744 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   4,415 	  9,123 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   1,624 	  7,061 
	 Insurance		   6,343 	  4,481 
	 Vehicles’ running expenses		   11,324 	  9,574 
	 Printing, stationery and periodicals		   4,923 	  4,115 
	 Electricity, gas and water		   4,264 	  2,506 
	 Postage, telephone and fax		   4,665 	  5,607 
	 Legal and professional		   6,542 	  5,895 
	 Security, gardening and sanitation		   19,115 	  20,424 
	 Amortization	 15	  3,279 	  273 
	 Depreciation	 14.1.3	  15,287 	  19,638 
	 Miscellaneous expense		   11,677 	  16,084 
		   	  210,356 	  218,739 
				  
	 30.1	 Salaries and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 3.407 million (2011: 

Rupees 3.008 million) by the Company.			 
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
31.	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 31.1 	  1,225 	  1,608 
	 Donations	 31.2 	  400 	  451 
	 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 14.1.2	  93,311 	  -   
	 Loss on disposal of freehold land classified as held for sale		   -   	  34,050 
	 Loss on winding up of subsidiary company		   171 	  -   
	 Loss on remeasurement  of fair value of  investments at 
	    fair value through profit or loss 		   -   	  102 
	 Provision for doubtful debts	 21	  4,093 	  2,274 
	 Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools	 19.2	  640 	  744 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 9.1	  16,171 	  10,188 
	 Miscellaneous		   -   	  15 

			    116,011 	  49,432 
				  
	 31.1	 Auditors’ remuneration			 
				  
		  Audit fee		   1,200 	  1,200 
		  Certifications		   25 	  408 

				     1,225 	  1,608 
				  
	 31.2	 None of the directors and their spouses have any interest in the donee’s fund.		

	
32.	 OTHER OPERATING INCOME			 
				  
	 Income from financial assets:			 
	 Exchange gain		   4,282 	  5,570 
	 Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	  6,399 	  1,227 
	 Gain on disposal of investment - Security General 
	    Insurance Company Limited		   -   	  530,477 
	 Gain on remeasurement  of fair value of  investments at fair 
	   value through profit or loss 		   11 	  -   
	 Return on bank deposits		   17,600 	  1,268 
	 Dividend income		   75 	  266 

			    28,367 	  538,808 
				  
	 Income from related parties :			 
	 Dividend income - Security General Insurance Company Limited	  -   	  15,997 
	 Mark up on receivable from Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited	  -   	  2,517 

			    -   	  18,514 
	 Income from non-financial assets:
	 Scrap sales		   26,888 	  29,898 
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		   -   	  7,668 
	 Gain on remeasurement  of fair value of  investment property		   1,633 	  879 
	 Unclaimed balances written back		   10,066 	  -   
	 Miscellaneous		   319 	  3 

			    38,906 	  38,448
 
			    67,273 	  595,770 
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
33.	 FINANCE COST			 
				  
	 Mark-up / finance charges / interest on:			 
	 Long term financing 		   231,140 	  263,350 
	 Short term borrowings		   580,296 	  721,918 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   6,472 	  14,211 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund 	 9.1	  2,964 	  2,445 
	 Payable to Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - net		   20,833 	  -   
	 Employees’ provident fund trust		   5,626 	  6,407 

			    847,331 	  1,008,331 
	 Bank charges and commission		   23,409 	  28,963

			    870,740 	  1,037,294 
				  
34.	 TAXATION			 
				  
	 For the year			 
	 Current tax	 34.1	  109,826 	  132,181 
	 Deferred tax		   78,034 	  68,758 

			    187,860 	  200,939 
				  
	 34.1	 Provision for current tax represents final tax on export sales, minimum tax on local sales and tax 

on income from other sources under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance,  2001. 
Numeric tax reconciliation has not been presented, being impracticable.  

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
35.	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS			 
				  
	 Profit before taxation		   304,289 	  688,790 				  
	 Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:			  				  
	 Depreciation 		   347,245 	  357,745 
	 Amortization		   3,279 	  273 
	 Finance cost		   870,740 	  1,034,849 
	 Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment		   93,311 	  (7,668)
	 Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	 	 (6,399)	  (1,227)
	 Loss on winding up of subsidiary company		   171 	  -   
	 Gain on disposal of investment - Security General 
	   Insurance Company Limited		   -   	  (530,477)
	 Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment properties		   (1,633)	  (879)
	 Dividend income		   (75)	  (16,263)
	 Return on bank deposits		   (17,600)	  (1,268)
	 Provision for doubtful debts		   4,093 	  2,274 
	 Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools 		   640 	  744 
	 Unclaimed balances written back		   (10,066)	  -   
	 Loss on disposal of non-current assets classified as held for sale		   -   	  34,050 
	 (Gain) / loss on remeasurement of investments at fair value 
	    through profit or loss 		   (11)	  102 
	 Working capital changes	 35.1	  298,696 	  1,437,349 
				  
			    1,886,680 	 2,998,394 
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			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	 35.1	 Working capital changes			 
				  
		  (Increase) / decrease in current assets:			 
		  Stores, spare parts and loose tools		   7,267 	 16,661 
		  Stock-in-trade		   127,303 	 735,861 
		  Trade debts		   (283,376)	 619,391 
		  Advances		   (71,075)	 355,464 
		  Security deposits and short term prepayments		   (6,864)	 (3,467)
		  Due from subsidiary companies		   -   	 (585,867)
		  Other receivables		   124,449 	 491,475 

				     (102,296)	 1,629,518 
				  
		  Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables		   400,992 	 (192,169)

				     298,696 	  1,437,349 

36.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, 
	 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES			 

	
	 The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration including 

certain benefits to the chief executive officer, directors and executives of the Company are given below:
		
		                           Chief Executive Officer	              Directors	                      Executives

		  2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011							     
			  --------------------( Rupees in Thousand )------------------	
		  		
	 Managerial remuneration	  4,246 	  3,785 	  5,280 	  4,640 	  50,004 	  45,383 
	 Allowances						    
	 House rent 	  -   	  -   	  133 	  133 	  10,547 	  9,575 
	 Conveyance	  -   	  -   	  279 	  269 	  6,079 	  5,491 
	 Medical	  -   	  -   	  153 	  137 	  4,879 	  4,432 
	 Utilities	  289 	  256 	  171 	  185 	  6,306 	  5,843 
	 Special allowance	  1,274 	  1,135 	  1,557 	  1,393 	  13,641 	  12,362 
	 Contribution to provident fund	  354 	  315 	  177 	  158 	  4,167 	  3,547
 
		   6,163 	  5,491 	  7,750 	  6,915 	  95,623 	  86,633 

	 Number of persons	 1	 1	 3	 3	 48	 49
							     
	 The Chief Executive Officer and directors are provided with the Company’s maintained vehicles, free 

medical facilities and residential telephone facilities for both business and personal use. Chief Executive 
Officer is also provided with free furnished accommodation alongwith utilities.				  
		

	 Executives are provided with the Company’s maintained vehicles in accordance with the Company policy.
						    
	 The aggregate amount charged in these f inancial statements in respect of directors’  meeting fee paid to 

1 (2011: 2) non - executive directors was Rupees 65,000 (2011: Rupees 90,000).				  
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37.	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES			 
				  
	 The related parties comprise of subsidiary company, associated undertakings, directors of the company 

and their close relatives, key management personnel and staff retirement fund. Detail of transactions 
with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial 
statements are as follows:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	 Subsidiary company
			 
	 Purchase of goods and services		   399 	  479 
	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment		   17 	  -   
	 Sale of property, plant and equipment		   -   	  204 
				  
	 Associated company			 
				  
	 Dividend income		   -   	  15,997 
				  
	 Post employment benefit plan			 
				  
	 Contribution to provident fund		   21,449 	  21,038 
				  
	 Other related parties			 
				  
	 Sale of vehicles		   -   	  2,477    
				  
			   2012	 2011
38.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			 
				  
	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning 
	   per share which is based on:			 
				  
	 Profit attributable to ordinary shares	 Rupees in thousand	  116,429 	  487,851 
				  
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 	 Numbers	  245,526,216 	  221,964,572 
				  
	 Earnings per share	 Rupees 	  0.47 	  2.20  
				  
39.	 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

	 SPINNING:			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		  (Numbers)
		     	
	 Spindles (average) installed / worked		   85,680 	  85,680 
				  
			    	   (Kilograms in thousand)	
				  
	 100% Plant capacity converted into 20s count based on 
	    3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   36,315 	  33,620 
	 Actual production converted into 20s count based on 
	    3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   24,998 	  23,547 
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			   2012	 2011
			    (Numbers)
	  - Gujar Khan Division		    					  
	 Spindles (average) installed / worked		   70,848 	  70,848 
				  
				    (Kilograms in thousand)					  
	 100% Plant capacity converted into 20s count based on 
	 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts )		   31,900 	  32,042 
	 Actual production converted into 20s count based on 
	 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   24,441 	  25,989 
				  
	 WEAVING:			  				  
	  - Raiwind Division		     (Numbers)	
				  
	 Looms installed / worked		   204 	  204 
				  
				    (Square meters in thousand)					  
	 100% Plant capacity at 60 picks based on 3 shifts per day 
	    for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   72,568 	  72,568 				  
	 Actual production converted to 60 picks based on 3 shifts 
	    per day for 1,082 shifts (2011: 1,072 shifts)		   65,871 	  66,580 
				  
	 PROCESSING OF CLOTH :			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		     (Meters in thousand)					  
	 Capacity at 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   41,860 	  41,975 				  
	 Actual production at 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)	  15,204 	  21,367 
				  
	 POWER PLANT:			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		     (Mega Watts)					  
	 Annual rated capacity based on 366 days (2011: 365 days)		   208,356 	  207,787 
	 Actual generation			 
		      - Main engines		   11,659 	  884 
	   	     - Gas engines		   41,104 	  60,935 
				  
	  - Raiwind Division				  
	 Annual rated capacity (based on 365 days)		   54,460 	  54,460 
	 Actual generation - Gas engines		   14,366 	  22,432 
				  
	 Stitching 			  				  
	 The plant  capacity of  this division is indeterminable due to multi product plant involving varying 

processes of manufacturing and run length of order lots.			 
				  
	 REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION			  				  
	  - 	 Due to stoppage for normal maintenance, doffing, change of spin plans and cloth quality,  interruption 

in gas and electricity supply.				  
	  - 	 Cloth processing units working capacity was limited to actual export / local orders in hand.				  
	  - 	 The generation of power was limited to actual demand.
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	 All segment liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than trade and other payables and 
deferred tax liabilities.

	 40.3	 Geographical Information			 
					   
	 40.3.1	 The Company’s revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed below:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
			 
		  Europe		   1,831,803 	  2,025,774 
		  America		   3,758,302 	  4,342,122 
		  Asia, Africa, Australia		   366,353 	  456,295 
		  Pakistan		   5,190,240 	  5,213,062 

				     11,146,698 	  12,037,253 

	 40.3.2	All non-current assets as at reporting date are located and operated in Pakistan.	
					   
	 40.4	 Revenue from major customers			 
					   
		  The Company’s revenue is earned from a large mix of customers.

41.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

	 41.1	 Financial risk factors	
			 
		  The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency 

risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall 
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company uses 
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.	

			 
		  Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under policies approved 

by the Board of Directors. The Company’s finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. 
The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific 
areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, use of 
derivative financial instruments and non derivative financial instruments and investment of excess 
liquidity. 	

			 
	 (a)	 Market risk	
			 
	 (i)	 Currency risk
		  	
		  Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial 
transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to  transactions in foreign currencies.

			 
		  The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 

respect to the United States Dollar (USD) and Euro. Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk 
exposure is restricted to bank balances and the amounts receivable / payable from / to the foreign 
entities. The Company’s exposure to currency risk was as follows:		
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			   2012	 2011
					   
		  Cash at banks - USD		   453,879 	  217,802 
		  Trade debts - USD		   6,762,000 	  4,485,184 
		  Trade debts - Euro		   8,859 	  - 
		  Trade and other payable - USD		   61,000 	  57,000 
		  Net exposure - USD		   7,154,879 	  4,646,184 
		  Net exposure - Euro		   8,859 	  - 
				  
		  The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:		

	
		  Rupees per US Dollar			 
		  Average rate 		   89.92 	 85.76
		  Reporting date rate 		   94.58 	  86.05 
		  Rupees per Euro			 
		  Average rate 		   119.01 	 117.96
		  Reporting date rate 		   117.58 	 124.89
				  
		  Sensitivity analysis			 
				  
		  If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the 

USD and Euro with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the 
year would have been Rupees 31.824  million and Rupees 0.049 million (2011 : Rupees 18.798 
million and Rupees Nil) respectively higher / lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses 
on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to 
foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management’s opinion, 
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does 
not reflect the exposure during the year.			 

				  
	 (ii)	 Other price risk			 
				  
		  Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk 
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.			 

				  
	 	 Sensitivity analysis			 
				  
		  The table below summarises the impact of increase / decrease in the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE) 

Index on the Company’s profit after taxation for the year and on equity (fair value reserve). The 
analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all 
other variables held constant and all the Company’s equity instruments moved according to the 
historical correlation with the index:

			 
		                             Index	 Impact on profit	 Impact on statement of other
			   after taxation	 comprehensive income	

			   2012	 2011	 2012	 2011
			    	    --------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) -----------------		

	
		  KSE 100 (5% increase)	  29 	  28 	  -   	  - 
		  KSE 100 (5% decrease)	  (29) 	  (28)	  -   	  - 
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	 (iii)	 Interest rate risk
		
		  This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates.
		
		  The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Company’s interest rate risk 

arises from long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and short term 
borrowings. Financial instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate 
risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

		
		  At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial 

instruments was:
			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
		  Fixed rate instruments
			 
		  Financial liabilities			 
		  Long term financing		   101,206 	  196,551 
		  Short term borrowings		   1,135,000 	  1,435,000 
					   
		  Floating rate instruments			 
				     - 	
	 	 Financial assets			 
				     - 	
		  Bank balances- saving accounts		   335,595 	  321,044 
				     - 	
		  Financial liabilities			 
				     - 	
		  Long term financing		   1,000,197 	  1,686,873 
		  Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   51,295 	  89,873 
		  Short term borrowings		   3,229,111 	  3,695,265 
					   
	 	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments		

	
					   
		  The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit 
or loss of the Company.			 

					   
	 	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments			 

			 
		  If interest rate at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held 

constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 37.478 million (2011 : Rupees 
48.934 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of  higher / lower interest expense / income on 
floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of financial 
instruments outstanding at balance sheet dates were outstanding for the whole year.		
	



85

	 (b)	 Credit risk			 
					   
		  Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 

for the other party by failing to  discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting 
date was as follows:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)

		  Investments		   611 	  600 
		  Deposits		   64,220 	  43,380 
		  Trade debts		   986,683 	 707,400
		  Advances		   2,627 	 1,614
		  Accrued interest		   217 	 46
		  Due from subsidiary companies		   - 	 601,144
		  Other receivables		   33,612 	 24,208
		  Bank balances		   384,559 	 419,695

				     1,472,529 	  1,798,087 
				  
		  The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 

reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to historical information about counterparty 
default rate:			 

				    Rating		  2012	 2011

			   Short term	 Long term	 Agency	          (Rupees in thousand)	
Banks					   

						    
	 Al-Baraka Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited	 A2	 A	 PACRA	  2,581 	 6,410
	 Allied Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA	 PACRA	  3,326 	 6,507
	 Askari Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA 	 PACRA	  24,236 	 46,473
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	 A1+	 AA	 PACRA	  3,923 	 32,275
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 A-1-	 AA+	 PACRA	  699 	 1604
	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 A1	 A	 PACRA	  22 	  -   
	 Burj Bank Limited	 A-2	 A 	 JCR-VIS	  11 	 279,710
	 Citibank N.A.	 P-1	 Aa3	 Moody’s	  26 	 494
	 Faysal Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA	 PACRA	  206 	 774
	 First Women Bank Ltd	 A2	 BBB+	 PACRA	  19 	  -   
	 Habib Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA+	 JCR-VIS	  119 	 50
	 HSBC Bank Middle East Limited	 P-1	 A1	 Moody’s	  36 	  -   
	 KASB Bank Limited	 A3	 BBB	 PACRA	  287,502 	  -   
	 MCB Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA+	 PACRA	  25,692 	 26,419
	 Meezan Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA-	 JCR-VIS	  541 	 618
	 My Bank Limited	 A-2	 A-	 PACRA	  - 	 32
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 A-1+	 AAA	 JCR-VIS	  1,381 	 4666
	 NIB Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA-	 PACRA	  3,495 	 1657
	 Silkbank Limited	 A-2	 A-	 JCR-VIS	  9 	 7
	 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited	 A1+	 AAA	 PACRA	  41 	  10 
	 The Bank of Punjab	 A1+	 AA-	 PACRA	  27,353 	 11765
	 United Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA+	 JCR-VIS	  3,341 	 224
						    
					      384,559 	  419,695 
						    
	 The Company’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 21.		
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		  Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit 
risk is minimal.

		
	 (c)	 Liquidity risk
		
		  Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities.
	
		  The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding 

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2012, the Company had Rupees 
5,825 million (2011: Rupees 6,045 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and 
Rupees 385.503 million (2011: Rupees 420.996 million) cash and bank balances. The management 
believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, 
including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:		

		  Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2012

	 			   Carrying	 Contractual	 6 month	 6-12	 1-2	 More than 	
		  amount	 cash flows	 or less	 month	 Year	 2 Years

				         	 ------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
		  Non-derivative financial 
		  liabilities:						    
								      
	 	 Long term financing	  1,106,197 	  1,295,803 	  479,149 	  275,161 	  537,706 	  3,787 
		  Liabilities against assets 
		    subject to finance lease	  51,295 	  54,165 	  22,567 	  10,867 	  20,731 	  -   
	 	 Trade and other payables	  990,455 	  990,455 	  990,455 	  - 	  - 	  -   
		  Accrued mark-up	  185,698 	  185,698 	  185,698 	  - 	  - 	  -   
	 	 Short term borrowings	  4,364,111 	  4,480,440 	  3,933,471 	  546,969 	  - 	  -   
								      
				     6,697,756 	  7,006,561 	  5,611,340 	  832,997 	  558,437 	  3,787  

		  ‘Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2011

	 			   Carrying	 Contractual	 6 month	 6-12	 1-2	 More than 	
		  amount	 cash flows	 or less	 month	 Year	 2 Years

	 			        	 ------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
	 	 Non-derivative financial 
		  liabilities:						    
								      
		   Long term financing 	  1,883,424 	  2,264,497 	  472,488 	  313,083 	  721,298 	  757,628 
		   Liabilities against assets 
		     subject to finance lease 	  89,873 	  101,238 	  16,607 	  24,888 	  43,675 	  16,068 
		   Trade and other payables 	  754,095 	  754,095 	  754,095 	  - 	   -  	  - 
		   Accrued mark-up 	  230,138 	  230,138 	  230,138 	  - 	   -  	  - 
		   Short term borrowings 	  5,130,265 	  5,335,524 	  5,301,394 	  34,130 	   -  	  - 
								      
				     8,087,795 	  8,685,492 	  6,774,722 	  372,101 	  764,973 	  773,696  
								      

		  The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at 30 June. The rates of interest / mark up have 
been disclosed in note 6, note 7 and note 11 to these financial statements.
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	 41.2	 Financial instruments by categories
				    Loans and 	 Through profit 	 Total
				    receivables	 or loss
		
				                                                                        -------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------	

			  As at 30 June 2012			 
			  Assets as per balance sheet			 
			  Investments	  - 	  611 	  611 
			  Deposits	  64,220 	  - 	  64,220 
			  Trade debts	  986,683 	  - 	  986,683 
			  Advances	  2,627 	  - 	  2,627 
			  Accrued interest	  217 	  - 	  217 
			  Other receivables	  33,612 	  - 	  33,612 
			  Cash and bank balances	  385,503 	  - 	  385,503 

				    1,472,862 	  611 	  1,473,473 

					    Financial liabilities at 
					    amortized cost

					    (Rupees in thousand)

	
		 	 Liabilities as per balance sheet			 
			  Long term financing			    1,106,197 
			  Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease			    51,295 
			  Trade and other payables			    990,455 
			  Accrued mark-up			    185,698 
			  Short term borrowings			    4,364,111 

						      6,697,756 

				    Loans and 	 Through profit 	 Total
				    receivables	 or loss
		
				                                                                        -------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------

		 	 As at 30 June 2011			 
			  Assets as per balance sheet			 
			  Investments	  -   	  600 	  600 
			  Deposits	 43,380	  - 	  43,380 
			  Trade debts	 707,400	  - 	  707,400 
			  Advances	 1,614	  - 	  1,614 
			  Interest accrued	 46	  - 	  46 
			  Due from subsidiary companies	 601,144	  - 	  601,144 
			  Other receivables	 24,208	  - 	  24,208 
			  Cash and bank balances	 420,996	  - 	  420,996 

				    1,798,788 	  600 	  1,799,388 
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					    Financial liabilities at 
					    amortized cost

					    (Rupees in thousand)
	 	Liabilities as per balance sheet			 
	 Long term financing			    1,883,424 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease			    89,873 
	 Trade and other payables			    754,095 
	 Accrued mark-up			    230,138 
	 Short term borrowings			    5,130,265
 
						      8,087,795  

	 41.3	 Capital risk management			 
					   
		  The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order 
to maintain or adjust the capital structure,  the Company  may adjust  the  amount of dividends  
paid to  shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in 
the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company  monitors the capital  structure 
on the  basis of  gearing ratio. This ratio  is  calculated  as  borrowings   divided by total capital  
employed.   Borrowings   represent  long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance 
lease and  short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in note 6, note 7 and note 
11 respectively. Total capital employed includes ‘total equity’ as shown in the balance sheet plus 
‘borrowings’.  The gearing ratio as at year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 is as follows:		
	

					   
			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)

	 Borrowings		   5,521,603 	  7,103,562 
	 Total equity		   4,514,737 	  4,386,636 

	 Total capital employed		   10,036,340 	  11,490,198
 
	 Gearing ratio		  55%	 62%
				  
	 The decrease in gearing ratio resulted primarily from decrease in borrowings of the Company. 		

	
42.	 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE			 
				  
	 These financial statements were authorised for issue on  September 26, 2012 by the Board of Directors of 

the Company.			 
				  
43.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES			 
				  
	 No significant reclassification / rearrangement of corresponding figures has been made.		

	
44.	 GENERAL			 
				  
	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless stated otherwise.
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1.	 CUIN (Incorporation Number)	 0002805
		
2.	 Name of the Company	 KOHINOOR TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
		
3.	 Pattern of holding of the shares	 30.06.2012
	 held by the shareholders as at

4.		             	  S  i  z  e     o  f     H  o  l  d  i  n  g

	 No. of  				    Total
	 Shareholders	 From		  To	 Shares Held

	 2,625	 1	 -	 100	 71,839
	 1,022	 101	 -	 500	 296,405
	 362	 501	 -	 1,000	 270,913
	 607	 1,001	 -	 5,000	 1,601,664
	 118	 5,001	 -	 10,000	 897,710
	 44	 10,001	 -	 15,000	 539,666
	 32	 15,001	 -	 20,000	 583,827
	 17	 20,001	 -	 25,000	 398,888
	 9	 25,001	 -	 30,000	 248,231
	 7	 30,001	 -	 35,000	 223,360
	 3	 35,001	 -	 40,000	 116,974
	 7	 40,001	 -	 45,000	 302,119
	 9	 45,001	 -	 50,000	 442,073
	 5	 50,001	 -	 55,000	 262,384
	 4	 55,001	 -	 60,000	 232,385
	 5	 60,001	 -	 65,000	 309,734
	 1	 65,001	 -	 70,000	 67,000
	 2	 70,001	 -	 75,000	 145,937
	 2	 75,001	 -	 80,000	 152,600
	 1	 85,001	 -	 90,000	 88,214
	 1	 90,001	 -	 95,000	 92,350
	 5	 95,001	 -	 100,000	 494,110
	 1	 100,001	 -	 105,000	 105,000
	 2	 105,001	 -	 110,000	 212,525
	 1	 115,001	 -	 120,000	 120,000
	 1	 120,001	 -	 125,000	 121,000
	 1	 130,001	 -	 135,000	 134,059
	 2	 145,001	 -	 150,000	 300,000
	 1	 150,001	 -	 155,000	 150,223
	 1	 160,001	 -	 165,000	 160,085
	 1	 165,001	 -	 170,000	 169,838
	 1	 175,001	 -	 180,000	 179,830
	 1	 185,001	 -	 190,000	 185,357
	 1	 200,001	 -	 205,000	 201,156
	 1	 205,001	 -	 210,000	 208,272
	 1	 210,001	 -	 215,000	 215,000
	 1	 215,001	 -	 220,000	 218,000
	 1	 250,001	 -	 255,000	 251,293
	 2	 275,001	 -	 280,000	 553,549
	 1	 295,001	 -	 300,000	 300,000
	 1	 300,001	 -	 305,000	 300,405
	 1	 315,001	 -	 320,000	 315,847

Pattern of Shareholding
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	 1	 320,001	 -	 325,000	 322,491
	 1	 435,001	 -	 440,000	 438,999
	 1	 445,001	 -	 450,000	 447,218
	 1	 450,001	 -	 455,000	 450,216
	 1	 485,001	 -	 490,000	 485,100
	 1	 490,001	 -	 495,000	 495,000
	 2	 495,001	 -	 500,000	 996,094
	 1	 635,001	 -	 640,000	 635,200
	 1	 690,001	 -	 695,000	 691,753
	 1	 780,001	 -	 785,000	 784,047
	 1	 905,001	 -	 910,000	 905,062
	 1	 1,115,001	 -	 1,120,000	 1,116,000
	 1	 1,275,001	 -	 1,280,000	 1,279,886
	 1	 1,560,001	 -	 1,565,000	 1,560,500
	 1	 1,935,001	 -	 1,940,000	 1,936,120
	 1	 2,360,001	 -	 2,365,000	 2,362,066
	 1	 3,325,001	 -	 3,350,000	 3,325,868
	 1	 5,075,001	 -	 5,080,000	 5,077,500
	 1	 5,770,001	 -	 5,775,000	 5,772,279
	 1	 8,545,001	 -	 8,550,000	 8,549,366
	 1	 9,045,001	 -	 9,050,000	 9,045,940
	 1	 10,040,001	 -	 10,045,000	 10,040,331
	 1	 10,825,001	 -	 10,830,000	 10,827,332
	 1	 45,495,001	 -	 45,500,000	 45,496,057
	 1	 60,040,001	 -	 60,045,000	 60,040,081
	 1	 60,205,001	 -	 60,210,000	 60,205,888
					   
					   
	 4,938	   	 TOTAL		  245,526,216

Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.

5.	 Categories of 		  Shares	 Percentage
	 Shareholders 		  Held	 of Capital
				  	
5.1	 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their 
	 spouses & minor children			  			  	
	 Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol, Chairman/Director		  10,040,331	 4.0893
	 Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol, Chief Executive Officer/Director		  10,827,332	 4.4099
	 Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol, Director		  315,847	 0.1286
	 Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol, Director		  70,937	 0.0289
	 Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol, Director		  2,500	 0.0010
	 Mr. Zamiruddin Azar, Director		  5,930	 0.0024
	 Mr. Arif Ijaz, Director		  2,500	 0.0010
	 Mrs. Shehla Tariq Saigol, spouse of Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol		  450,216	 0.1834

					    21,715,593	 8.8445

		             	  S  i  z  e     o  f     H  o  l  d  i  n  g

	 No. of  				    Total
	 Shareholders	 From		  To	 Shares Held



91

5.2	 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties			 
	 Zimpex (Private) Limited		  45,496,057	 18.5300
				 
5.3	 NIT and ICP			 
	 National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt.    		  3,325,868	 1.3546
	 IDBP (ICP UNIT)		  16,615	 0.0067

					    3,342,483	 1.3613
5.4	 Banks, Development  Financial  Institutions,			 
	 Non-Banking Financial Institutions		  3,607,527	 1.4693
				 
5.5	 Insurance Companies	 	 3,833	 0.0016
				 
5.6	 Modarabas and  Leasing 		  209,596	 0.0854
				 
5.6 a	 Mutual Funds			 
	 Prudential Stock Fund Ltd		  3,793	 0.0015
				 
5.7	 Share holders holding Five Percent				  

  or more voting interest in the Company				  
		  refer 5.2 & 5.8 b

5.8	 General Public			 
	 a)	 Individuals		  34,255,649	 13.9519
				 
	 b)	 Foreign Investor (s)		  120,479,119	 49.0698
				 
5.9	 Joint Stock Companies		  16,028,863	 6.5284
				 
5.10	 Public Sector Companies and Corporations		  300,405	 0.1224
				 
5.11	 Executives		  8	 0.0000
				 
5.12	 Others			 
	 Artal Restaurant Int Limited Employees Provident Fund		  1,815 	
	 Fikree Development Corporation Limited		  2,794 	
	 Hussain Trustees Limited		  260 	
	 Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan		  1 	
	 The Deputy Administrator Abandoned Properties Organization	 3,045 	
	 The Ida Rieu Poor Welfare Association		  354 	
	 The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited-Future Cont.		  61,425 	
	 The Okhai Memon Madressah Association		  1 	
	 Trustees Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Ltd Employees Gratuity Fund		  9,075 	
	 Trustees Moosa Lawai Foundation		  3,751 	
	 United Executers & Trustee Company Limited		  173 	
	 University of Sindh 		  596 	

					    83,290	 0.0339				 
	 Grand Total :	 	 245,526,216	 100.0000
				 

	 Categories of 		  Shares	 Percentage
	 Shareholders 		  Held	 of Capital
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The Directors are pleased to present the audited consolidated financial statements of the group for the year 
ended 30th June, 2012.

GROUP RESULTS 

The Group has earned gross profit of Rs. 6,206 million as compared to Rs. 3,998 million of corresponding 
year. The group has earned pre-tax profit of Rs. 2,012 million this year as compared to pre-tax loss of Rs. 1,802 
million during the last year.  

The overall group financial results are as follows: 

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)

Gross sales		   26,607,655	 25,109,992
Gross profit		  6,205,770	 3,998,707
Profit from operations	    	  5,233,569	 1,399,596  
Financial charges		      3,221,305 	 3,201,186  	

	     
				  
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 

The subsidiary company of Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited has shown gross profit of 25.97% as compared to 
16.64% of previous year. 

Acknowledgement

 The Directors are grateful to the Group’s members, financial institutions, customers and employees for their 
cooperation and support. They also appreciate the hard work and dedication of the employees working at 
various divisions.

	 For and on behalf of the Board

	 Taufique Sayeed Saigol
	 Chief Executive  	
Lahore
September 26, 2012

Directors’ Report on Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
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We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of 
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its Subsidiary Company (together referred to as 
Group) as at 30 June 2012 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity 
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate 
opinion on the financial statements of Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited. The financial statements of the Subsidiary 
Company was audited by other firm of auditors, whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so 
far as it relates to the amounts included for such Company, is based solely on the report of such other auditors. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly 
included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Kohinoor Textile 
Mills Limited and its Subsidiary Company as at 30 June 2012 and the results of their operations for the year 
then ended.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
Atif Bin Arshad

DATE: September 26, 2012

ISLAMABAD

Auditors’ Report to the Members
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)	
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			 
			 
Authorized share capital			 
370,000,000 (2011: 370,000,000)			 
ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each		   3,700,000 	  3,700,000 
			 
30,000,000 (2011: 30,000,000) preference			 
shares of Rupees 10 each		   300,000 	  300,000
 
			    4,000,000 	  4,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital	 3	  2,455,262 	  2,455,262 
Reserves	 4	  1,483,031 	  659,690 

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company		   3,938,293 	  3,114,952 
Non-controlling interest	 5	  1,335,388 	  1,046,234
 
Total equity		   5,273,681 	  4,161,186 
Surplus on revaluation of land and investment properties 	 6	  4,044,540 	  9,233,617 
			 
LIABILITIES			 
			 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			 

Long term financing	 7	  4,023,234 	  5,372,895 
Redeemable capital 	 8	  7,183,000 	  7,983,000 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 9	  263,126 	  507,209 
Long term deposits	 10	  6,219 	  5,569 
Retirement benefits	 11	  50,926 	  32,179 
Deferred income tax liability	 12	  140,175 	  2,414,958 

			    11,666,680 	  16,315,810 
			 
CURRENT LIABILITIES			 

Trade and other payables	 13	  4,579,005 	  4,744,951 
Accrued mark-up  	 14	  943,532 	  1,021,299 
Short term borrowings 	 15	  7,613,495 	  9,214,931 
Current portion of non-current liabilities	 16	  3,487,820 	  1,988,378 

			    16,623,852 	  16,969,559 

TOTAL LIABILITIES		   28,290,532 	  33,285,369 
			 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 17		
			 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	 	  37,608,753 	  46,680,172 
			 
The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.		

	

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As at June 30, 2012	

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)	
ASSETS	 		
			 
NON - CURRENT ASSETS			 
			 
Property, plant and equipment	 18	  25,998,384 	  34,950,932 
Intangible assets	 19	  15,081 	  27,154 
Investment properties	 20	  1,728,886 	  1,721,714 
Long term investment		   3,037 	  -   
Long term loans to employees	 21	  2,387 	  2,531 
Long term deposits 	 22	  103,865 	  87,794 

			    27,851,640 	  36,790,125 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				  
CURRENT ASSETS			 
			 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools	 23	  3,422,429 	  3,361,339 
Stock-in-trade  	 24	  2,433,344 	  2,196,336 
Trade debts	 25	  1,562,614 	  1,267,503 
Loans and advances	 26	  493,574 	  386,392 
Security deposits and short term prepayments	 27	  144,562 	  140,941 
Accrued Interest		   1,408 	  936 
Other receivables	 28	  373,246 	  547,892 
Short term investments	 29	  33,733 	  942,941 
Taxation recoverable		   443,474 	  336,291 
Cash and bank balances	 30	  848,729 	  709,476 

			    9,757,113 	  9,890,047 
			 
			 

			 
			 
			 
			 
TOTAL ASSETS		   37,608,753 	  46,680,172    

		D  IRECTOR



98

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)	

			 
SALES	 31	  26,607,655 	  25,109,992 
COST OF SALES	 32	  (20,401,885)	  (21,111,285)

GROSS PROFIT		   6,205,770 	  3,998,707 
			 
DISTRIBUTION COST	 33	  (1,248,624)	  (2,071,695)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES	 34	  (427,128)	  (425,467)
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES	 35	  (305,706)	  (235,965)

			    (1,981,458)	  (2,733,127)

			    4,224,312 	  1,265,580 
OTHER OPERATING INCOME	 36	  1,009,257 	  134,016 

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS		   5,233,569 	  1,399,596 
			 
FINANCE COST	 37	  (3,221,305)	  (3,201,186)

PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION		   2,012,264 	  (1,801,590)
			 
TAXATION	 38	  (240,765)	  (389,064)

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION		   1,771,499 	  (2,190,654)
			 
SHARE OF PROFIT / (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:			 
EQUITY HOLDERS OF HOLDING COMPANY		   1,338,740 	  (1,374,209)
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST			 
           Dividend on preference shares		   52,076 	  52,678 
           Share in profit / (loss) for the year 		   380,683 	  (869,123)

			    432,759 	  (816,445)

			    1,771,499 	  (2,190,654)

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (Rupees)	 42	  5.45 	  (6.19)
			 
			 
The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account  
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	D IRECTOR
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			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)	

			 
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION		   1,771,499 	  (2,190,654)
			 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 			 
			 
Deficit arising on remeasurement of available for 
   sale investment to fair value	 	  -   	  (165,630)
			 
Reclassification adjustment for gain included in profit and loss	 	  (670,676)	  -   
			 
Deferred income tax relating to surplus on available for sale investment	  -   	  43,478 

Other comprehensive loss for the year - net of tax		   (670,676)	  (122,152)
			 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR		   1,100,823 	  (2,312,806)
			 
SHARE OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:		

	
EQUITY HOLDERS OF HOLDING COMPANY	 	  814,813 	  (1,478,359)
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST	 	  286,010 	  (834,447)

			 
			    1,100,823 	  (2,312,806)
			 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	D IRECTOR
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
			
Cash generated from operations	 39	  5,353,514 	  4,663,795 
Finance cost paid		   (3,211,842)	  (1,786,882)
Workers’ profit participation fund paid		   (8)	  (13,397)
Compensated absences paid		   -   	  (6,904)
Income tax paid		   (269,914)	  (204,057)
Net (increase) / decrease in long term deposits 		   (15,421)	  1,163 

Net cash generated from operating activities		   1,856,329 	  2,653,718 
			
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
			
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment		   (380,416)	  (854,850)
Capital expenditure on intangible assets		   -   	  (9,836)
Capital expenditure on investment properties		   (5,539)	  -   
Long term loan to employees		   144 	  762 
Investments made		   (18,037)	  (174)
Interest received		   17,429 	  5,787 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		   321,346 	  121,335 
Proceeds from sale of investments		   930,260 	  8,715 
Proceeds from sale of non current-assets classified as held for sale		   -   	  119,200 
Advance against purchase of land received back		   -   	  100,000 
Dividends received		   459 	  27,980 

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities		   865,646 	  (481,081)
			
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			 
			
Proceeds from long term financing 		   -   	  150,000 
Repayment of long term financing 		   (880,301)	  (771,948)
Short term borrowings  - net		   (1,601,436)	  (916,342)
Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   (94,134)	  (70,523)
Repayment of redeemable capital		   (6,800)	  (6,800)
Dividend paid		   (51)	  (1)

Net cash used in financing activities		   (2,582,722)	  (1,615,614)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		   139,253 	  557,023 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   709,476 	  152,453 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   848,729 	  709,476 
			
			
The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.		

	

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  
For the year ended June 30, 2012		

	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	D IRECTOR
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1.	 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

	 Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary, Maple Leaf Cement Factory 
Limited (together, the Group) are public limited companies incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies 
Act, 1913 (Now Companies Ordinance, 1984) and their shares are quoted on all Stock Exchanges in 
Pakistan. The Group’s registered office is situated at 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore. The Holding Company 
holds 64.50% (2011: 64.63%) shares of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited. The principal activity of the 
Holding Company is manufacturing of yarn and cloth, processing and stitching the cloth and trade of 
textile products. The Subsidiary Company is engaged in production and sale of cement.

2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise 
stated:

	 2.1	 Basis of Preparation

	 a)	 Statement of Compliance 

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

	 b)	 Accounting Convention

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
except for the certain financial instruments, investment properties and freehold land which are 
carried at their fair values and certain employee retirement benefits which are carried at their 
present values.

	 c)	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

		  The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved 
accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the 
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. 
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting 
policies are as follows:

		  Financial instruments 

		  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques based on assumptions that are dependent on market indications existing at 
balance sheet date.   

		  Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

		  Estimates with respect to residual values, useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits 
are based on the analysis of the management of the Group. Further, the Group reviews the value 
of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future 
might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Notes to the CONSOLIDATED Financial Statements  
For the year ended June 30, 2012
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		  Inventories

		  Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices 
less estimated expenditure to make sales.

		  Taxation

		  In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Group, the management takes into 
account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in 
the past.

		  Employee benefits

		  The Subsidiary Company operates approved funded gratuity scheme covering all its employees who 
have completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. 
The gratuity scheme is managed by trustees. The calculation of the benefit requires assumptions to 
be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration and 
the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. The assumptions used for the 
plan are determined by independent actuary on annual basis.

		  The amount of the expected return on plan assets is calculated using the expected rate of return for 
the year and the market-related value at the beginning of the year. Gratuity cost primarily represents 
the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for benefits earned on employee service 
during the year and the interest on the obligation in respect of employee service in previous years, 
net of the expected return on plan assets. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying 
assumptions.

		  Provisions for doubtful debts
	
		  The Group reviews its receivable against any provision required for any doubtful balances on an 

ongoing basis. The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.

	 d)	 Amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year and are 
relevant to the Group

		  The following amendments to published approved standards are mandatory for the Group’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2011:

		  IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 July 2011). The new disclosure requirements apply to transfer of financial assets. An 
entity transfers a financial asset when it transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of 
the asset to another party. These amendments are part of the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASBs) comprehensive review of off balance sheet activities. The amendments will promote 
transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding of the risk 
exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial 
position, particularly those involving securitization of financial asset. However, this amendment 
has no material impact on these consolidated financial statements. 

		  IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2011). It clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of other comprehensive 
income for each component of equity, either in the consolidated statement of changes in equity 
or in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. However, this amendment has no material 
impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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	 e)	 Interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are effective in 
current year but not relevant to the Group

		  There are other new interpretations and amendments to the published approved standards that 
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2011 but are considered not to 
be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements 
and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

	 f)	 Standards and amendments to published approved standards that are not yet effective but 
relevant to the Group

		  Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are 
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012: 

		  IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2013). The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has amended 
the accounting requirements and disclosures related to offsetting of financial assets and financial 
liabilities by issuing amendments to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and IFRS 7. These 
amendments are the result of IASB and US Financial Accounting Standard Board undertaking a joint 
project to address the differences in their respective accounting standards regarding offsetting 
of financial instruments. The clarifying amendments to IAS 32 are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2014. However, these amendments are not expected to have a 
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.  

		  IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015). It 
addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
This is the first part of a new standard on classification and measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities that shall replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. 
IFRS 9 has two measurement categories: amortized cost and fair value. All equity instruments are 
measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding 
it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest. For liabilities, 
the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. These include amortized-cost accounting 
for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in 
cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due 
to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income 
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. This change shall mainly affect financial 
institutions. There shall be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new 
requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value 
through profit or loss, and the Group does not have any such liabilities.

		  IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2013). Concurrent with the issuance of IFRS 10, the IASB has also issued IFRS 11 ‘Joint 
Arrangements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’, IAS 27 (revised 2011) ‘Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 (revised 2011) ‘Investments in Associates’. The 
objective of IFRS 10 is to have a single basis for consolidation for all entities, regardless of the 
nature of the investee, and that basis is control. The definition of control includes three elements: 
power over an investee, exposure or rights to variable returns of the investee and the ability to 
use power over the investee to affect the investor’s returns. IFRS 10 replaces those parts of IAS 27 
‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’ that address when and how an investor should 
prepare consolidated financial statements and replaces Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) 
12 ‘Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities’ in its entirety. The management of the Group is in the 
process of evaluating the impacts of the aforesaid standard on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements.

		  IFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2013). This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in 
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off-
balance sheet vehicles. This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.
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		  IFRS 13 ‘Fair value Measurement’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 
2013). This standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise 
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements 
for use across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do 
not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where 
its use is already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP. This standard is 
not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

		  IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 July 2012). The main change resulting from this amendment is the requirement for 
entities to group items presented in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) on the basis of whether 
they are potentially recycled to profit or loss (reclassification adjustments). The amendment does 
not address which items are presented in OCI. However, this amendment is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

		  IAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 01 January 2013). This amendment requires that spare parts, stand-by equipment and 
servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet 
the definition of property, plant and equipment in IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. However, 
this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements.

		  On 17 May 2012, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2009 – 2011 Cycle, incorporating 
amendments to five IFRSs more specifically in  IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 
32 ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that are considered relevant to the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2013. These amendments are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements and have therefore not been analyzed in detail.

	 g)	 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are not 
yet effective and not considered relevant to the Group

		  There are other standards, amendments to published approved standards and new interpretations 
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2012 but are considered 
not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

	 2.2	 Basis of consolidation

		  Subsidiary Company is that entity in which Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, 
beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect 
and appoint more than 50% of its directors. The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company is 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date control commences until the date 
that control ceases. 

		  The assets and liabilities of Subsidiary Company have been consolidated on a line by line basis 
and carrying value of investment held by the Holding Company is eliminated against Holding 
Company’s share in paid up capital of the Subsidiary Company.

		  Intragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

		  Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of Subsidiary 
Company attributable to interest which are not owned by the Holding Company. Non-controlling 
interest is presented as separate item in the consolidated financial statements. 
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	 2.3	 Employee benefit

	 a)	D efined contribution plan

		  The Group operates an approved funded provident fund scheme covering all permanent employees. 
Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Group and employees to the fund. The Group’s 
contributions to the fund are charged to consolidated profit and loss account.

	 b)	D efined benefit plan

		  The Subsidiary Company operates approved funded gratuity scheme for all its employees who 
have completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. 
Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation 
and is charged to consolidated profit and loss account.

		  The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of defined 
benefit obligations as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses.

		  Cumulative net unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of previous year which exceeds 
10% of the present value of the Subsidiary Company’s gratuity are amortized over the average 
expected remaining working lives of the employees.

	 c)	 Liability for employees’ compensated absences

		  The Subsidiary Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences 
in the year in which these are earned. Provision to cover the obligations is made using the current 
salary level of employees.

	 2.4	 Taxation

		  Current

		  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with 
the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing 
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current 
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous 
years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

		  Deferred

		  Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the 
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

		  Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated profit and loss account, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
In this case the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
respectively.

	 2.5	 Provisions

		  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
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	 2.6	 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

		  Owned 

		  Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of property, plant 
and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction 
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working 
condition. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Capital 
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All cost or expenditure 
attributable to work-in-progress are capitalized and apportioned to buildings and plant and 
machinery at the time of commencement of commercial operations of the Subsidiary Company.

		  Cost in relation to certain plant and machinery of the Subsidiary Company represents historical 
cost, exchange differences capitalized up to 30 June 2004 and the cost of borrowings during the 
construction period in respect of loans and finances taken for the specific projects.

		  Transactions relating to jointly owned assets of the Subsidiary Company with Pak American 
Fertilizers Limited (PAFL), are recorded on the basis of advices received from the housing colony. 

		  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are charged to consolidated profit and loss account during the period in which 
they are incurred.

		  Leased

		  Leases where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance lease. Assets subject to finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease 
term at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the 
fair value of the leased assets, each determined at the inception of the lease.

		  The related rental obligation net of finance cost, is included in liabilities against assets subject to 
finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of 
payments. 

		  Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant 
rate on the balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to consolidated profit and loss account 
over the lease term.

		  Depreciation of assets subject to finance lease is recognised in the same manner as for owned 
assets. Depreciation of the leased assets is charged to consolidated profit and loss account. 

		  Depreciation

		  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to consolidated profit and loss account 
applying the reducing balance method except that straight-line method is used for the plant and 
machinery and buildings of Subsidiary Company relating to dry process plant after deducting 
residual value, so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the asset over their estimated 
useful lives at the rates given in Note 18.1. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month 
the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets 
are disposed off. The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed by the management, at 
each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.
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		  Derecognition

		  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset is included in the consolidated profit and loss account in the year the asset is derecognised.

	 2.7	 Investment properties

		  Land and buildings held for capital appreciation or to earn rental income are classified as investment 
properties. Investment properties are carried at fair value which is based on active market prices, 
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. 
The valuation of the properties is carried out with sufficient regularity.

		  Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is recognised in the 
consolidated profit and loss account for the year in which it arises. 

	 2.8	 Intangible assets

		  Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognised at 
cost, which comprise purchase price, non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable 
expenditure relating to their implementation and customization. After initial recognition an 
intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. 
Intangible assets are amortized from the month, when these assets are available for use, using 
the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated 
useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group. The useful life and 
amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.   

	 2.9	 Investments 

		  Classification of investment is made on the basis of intended purpose for holding such investment. 
Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase 
and re-evaluates such designation on regular basis.

		  Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to 
acquisition, except for “investment at fair value through profit or loss” which is initially measured at 
fair value.

		  The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that investments are impaired. If any such evidence exists, the Group applies the provisions of IAS 
39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to all investments.

	 a)	 Investment at fair value through profit or loss 

		  Investment classified as held-for-trading and those designated as such are included in this category. 
Investments are classified as held-for-trading if these are acquired for the purpose of selling in the 
short term. Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in the consolidated 
profit and loss account.

	 b)	 Held-to-maturity 

		  Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments 
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Other long term 
investments that are intended to be held to maturity are subsequently measured at amortized cost. 
This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus 
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the cumulative amortization, using the effective interest method, of any difference between the 
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. For investments carried at amortized cost, 
gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the investments 
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

	 c)	 Available-for-sale

		  Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response 
to need for liquidity, or changes to interest rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale. 
After initial recognition, investments which are classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair 
value. Gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognised directly in the consolidated 
statement of other comprehensive income until the investment is sold, de-recognised or is 
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the 
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income is included in the consolidated profit and 
loss account. These are sub-categorized as under:

		  Quoted

		  For investments that are actively traded in organized capital markets, fair value is determined by 
reference to stock exchange quoted market bids at the close of business on the balance sheet date. 

		  Unquoted

		  Fair value of unquoted investments is determined on the basis of appropriate valuation techniques 
as allowed by IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. 

	 2.10	 Inventories

		  Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock / rags, are stated at lower of cost and net 
realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

		  Stores, spare parts and loose tools

		  Useable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while 
items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising 
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

		  Stock-in-trade

		  Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods are determined as follows:
		
		  (i)	 For raw materials:	 Annual average basis.
		  (ii)	 For work-in-process and finished goods:	 Average manufacturing cost including a portion of 
			   production overheads.
		
		  Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

Waste stock / rags are valued at net realizable value.

		  Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

	 2.11	 Trade and other receivables

		  Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice value less an estimate made for 
doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written 
off when identified.
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	 2.12	 Borrowings

		  Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit 
and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

	 2.13	 Borrowing cost

		  Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of 
commissioning of respective qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term 
finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognised in the consolidated profit 
and loss account.

	 2.14	 Trade and other payables

		  Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognised at fair value, which is 
normally the transaction cost.

	 2.15	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit 
accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

	 2.16	 Share capital

		  Ordinary shares are classified as share capital.

	 2.17	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue from different sources is recognised as under:

	 a)	 Revenue from local sales is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers while in case of export 
sales it is recognised on the date of bill of lading.

	 b)	 Dividend on equity investments is recognised when right to receive the dividend is established.

	 c)	 Profit on deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the 
amounts outstanding and rates applicable thereon.

	 2.18	 Foreign currencies

		  These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s 
functional currency. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, while the 
transactions in foreign currency during the year are initially recorded in functional currency at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak 
Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are 
determined. Exchange gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account.

	 2.19	 Financial instruments

		  Financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheet include investments, deposits, 
trade debts, advances, accrued interest, other receivables, cash and bank balances, long-term 
financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, short-term borrowings, accrued mark-
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up and trade and other payables etc. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of instrument. Initial recognition is made at fair value 
plus transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition, except for “financial instrument at fair 
value through profit or loss” which are initially measured at fair value.

		  Financial assets are derecognised when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that 
comprise the financial asset. The Group loses such control if it realizes the rights to benefits 
specified in contract, the rights expire or the Group surrenders those rights. Financial liabilities are 
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any 
gain or loss on subsequent measurement (except available for sale investments) and derecognition 
is charged to the consolidated profit and loss currently. The particular measurement methods 
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

	 2.20	 Impairment

	 a)	 Financial assets

		  A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events 
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

		  An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as 
a difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of available for sale 
financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair value.

		  Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The 
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics.

	 b)	N on-financial assets

		  The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount 
of the assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated 
profit and loss account except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against the 
related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on 
revaluation of that assets. 

	 2.21	D erivative financial instruments

		  Derivative that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the consolidated balance 
sheet at estimated fair value with corresponding effect to consolidated profit and loss account. 
Derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when 
fair value is negative.

	 2.22	 Segment reporting

		  Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating 
segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the transactions 
with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Group’s chief operating decision makers to make decisions about resources to be 
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information 
is available.  
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		  Segment results that are reported to the chief executive officer include items directly attributable 
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those income, expenses, 
assets, liabilities and other balances which can not be allocated to a particular segment on a 
reasonable basis are reported as unallocated. 

		  The Group has four reportable business segments. Spinning (Producing different quality of yarn 
using natural and artificial fibers), Weaving (Producing different quality of greige fabric using yarn), 
Processing and Home Textile (Processing greige fabric for production of printed and dyed fabric 
and manufacturing of home textile articles) and Cement.

		  Transaction among the business segments are recorded at arm’s length prices using admissible 
valuation methods. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

	 2.23	D ividend and other appropriations

		  Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared and other 
appropriations are recognised in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

	 2.24	 Off setting

		  Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
financial statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL		
					   
		  2012	 2011	 2012	 2011
		 (Number of Shares)	 (Rupees in thousand)

		   1,596,672 	  1,596,672 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each allotted on	  
				    reorganisation of Kohinoor Industries Limited	 15,967 	  15,967	

		
		   26,156,000 	  26,156,000 	 Ordinary shares allotted under scheme 
				    of arrangement of  merger of Part II of 
				    Maple Leaf Electric Company Limited	 261,560 	  261,560	

		
		   26,858,897 	  26,858,897 	 Ordinary shares allotted under scheme 
				    of arrangement of merger of		    
				    Kohinoor Raiwind Mills Limited and 
				    Kohinoor Gujar Khan Mills Limited	 268,589 	  268,589	

		
		   38,673,628 	  38,673,628 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued 
				    as fully paid bonus shares 		   386,736 	  386,736 
						    
		  152,241,019 	  152,241,019 	 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued 
				    as fully paid in cash 		   1,522,410 	 1,522,410 
						    
	 	 245,526,216 	  245,526,216 			    2,455,262 	  2,455,262 

3.1	 Zimpex (Private) Limited which is an associated company held  45,496,057 (2011: 45,496,057) ordinary 
shares of Holding Company of Rupees 10 each as at 30 June 2012.
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
4.	 RESERVES			 
				  
	 Composition of reserves is as follows:			 

	 Capital			 
				  
	 Share premium 	 4.1	  144,919 	  144,919 
	 Fair value reserve - net of deferred tax	 4.2	  -   	  523,927 
				  
				     144,919 	  668,846 
	 Revenue			 
				  
	 General reserve		   1,450,491 	  1,450,491 
	 Accumulated loss		   (112,379)	  (1,459,647)

				     1,338,112 	  (9,156)

				     1,483,031 	  659,690   
				  
				  
	 4.1	 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 83(2) of the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984.

	 4.2	 Fair value reserve - net of deferred tax			 
					   
		  Balance as at 01 July 		   523,927 	  628,077 					   
		  Add: Fair value adjustment on investment in Security 
		             General Insurance Company Limited during the year	  -   	  (141,220)					   
		  Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain included 
	  	              in profit and loss		   (523,927)	  -   					   
		  Less: Related deferred tax on investment in Security 
		              General Insurance Company Limited 		   -   	  37,070 					   
		  Balance as at 30 June 		   -   	  523,927 

5.	N ON-CONTROLLING INTEREST			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   1,046,234 	  2,405,263 
	 Add / (less): Share during the year			 
	   - Issue of shares to non-controlling interest holders		   -   	  290 
	   - Reclassification adjustment for gain included in profit and loss	  (146,749)	  (18,002)
	   - Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, 
	         plant and equipment (net of tax)		   -   	  49,059 
	   - Reversal of surplus on revaluation of disposal of property, 
	       plant and equipment (net of tax)		   -   	  4,085 
	   - Decrease / (increase) in interest of equity holders of the 
	        holding company		   3,144 	  (578,015)
	   - Profit / (loss) for the year		   432,759 	  (816,445)

				     289,154 	  (1,359,028)
	 Less : Dividend paid on preference shares		   -   	  (1)

				     1,335,388 	  1,046,234
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
6.	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF LAND AND 
	 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES			 
				  
	 Investment properties		   1,263,592 	  1,263,592 
	 Property, plant and equipment		   2,780,948 	  7,970,025
 
			    4,044,540 	  9,233,617   
				  
7.	 LONG TERM FINANCING 			 
				  
	 From banking companies and other financial 
	 institutions - secured			 
				  
	 Holding Company			 
				  
	 Long term loans 	 7.1	  846,817 	  1,172,199 
				  
	 Long term musharika 	 7.2	  254,586 	  703,748 

			    1,101,403 	  1,875,947 
	 Subsidiary Company			 
	 Long term loans 	 7.4	  4,400,784 	  4,503,858 
				  
			    5,502,187 	  6,379,805 
				  
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 		   1,483,747 	  1,014,387 

			    4,018,440 	  5,365,418 
	 Holding Company			 
				  
	 Other loans-unsecured			 
				  
	 Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited (KSML) 	 7.10	  4,794 	  4,794 
	 Kohinoor Industries Limited (KIL)		   -   	  2,683
 
			    4,794 	  7,477 
				  
			    4,023,234 	  5,372,895 

			 
 



115

NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

Allied Bank 
Limited

Saudi Pak 
Industrial 
and Agricultural 
Investment 
Company Limited

	 88,194 

	 101,206 

	  41,667 

	  -   

	  -   

	  93,750 

	  100,000 
	

	  150,006 
	

	  50,000 
	

	  31,836 
	

	  7,232 
	

	  125,000 

	  100,000 
	

	  300,000 

	
	  50,000 
	

	  76,000 
	

	  300,000 
	

	  250,000 

Quarterly

-

Quarterly

-

-

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

3 Months 
KIBOR + 2%

7%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 2%

SBP 
Refinance 
rate + 2%

7%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.7%

Thirty two equal 
monthly installments 
commenced from 
July 2011 and ending 
on February 2014.

Twenty four equal 
quarterly installments 
after expiry of grace 
period of one and a 
half year commenced 
from April 2005 and 
ending on September 
2014. 

Thirty two monthly 
i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commenced from July 
2011 and ending on 
February 2014.

Ten equal quarterly 
i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commenced on  April 
2008 and ended on July 
2011 including grace 
period of ten months .

Sixteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from July 
2007 and ended on 
April 2012 including 
grace period of one 
year.

Eight equal semi 
annual installments 
commenced from 
December 2008 
and ending on June 
2013 including grace 
period of one year .

First pari passu charge 
over all present and 
future current assets 
of the Company for 
Rupees 447 million. 
Exclusive charge on 
plant and machinery 
imported under LTF 
facility for Rupees 400 
million and personal 
guarantees of the 
sponsor directors.	
		
First pari passu charge 
over fixed assets of 
Raiwind Division and 
personal guarantees 
of the sponsor 
directors.		
	
		

Collateral covering 
the exposure 
including charges 
on both current 
and fixed assets of 
the Company and 
personal guarantees 
of the sponsor 
directors.		
	
Exclusive charge 
on the plant and 
machinery imported 
under the LTF facility 
for Rupees 400 
million and personal 
guarantees of the 
sponsor directors.	
		
First exclusive 
charge on imported 
machinery.		
	
		

	
First pari passu 
charge by way of 
hypothecation on all 
present and future 
plant and machinery 
of the Company and 
by way of mortgage 
on land measuring 121 
Acres, two kanal and 
one marla, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road, 
Rawalpindi with 25% 
margin.		
	

7.1	 Long term loans

LENDER 2012 2011 TOTAL
FACILITY

INTEREST
REPRICING

INTEREST
PAYABLE

RATE OF
INTEREST PER 

ANNUM

NUMBER OF
INSTALLMENTS

SECURITY

……….RUPEES IN THOUSAND……..
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Bank Al-Falah 
Limited

Faysal Bank 
Limited

Pak Libya Holding 
Company Limited

Total

Standard 
Chartered Bank 
(Pakistan) Limited

Allied Bank 
Limited

The Bank of 
Khyber

Total

	  296,250 

	
	  193,500 
	

	  32,250 
	

	  522,000 
	
	 846,817 

	  129,085 

	
	  61,001 
	

	  64,500 
	

	 254,586 

	  417,500 
	

	  250,500 
	

	  40,125 
	

	  708,125 
	
	 1,172,199 

	  167,085 
	

	  456,413 
	

	  80,250 

	
	 703,748 

	  500,000 
	

	  300,000 
	

	  50,000 
	

	  850,000 
	
	 1,926,000 

	  200,000 

	
	  568,750 
	

	  100,000 
	

	 868,750 

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1.5%

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

Nineteen equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced from 
October 2009 and 
ending on April 2014.

First joint pari passu 
charge on surplus 
land for Rupees 467 
million. 		
	
		
First pari passu charge 
over fixed assets of 
the Company for 
Rupees 400 million 
with 25% margin.	
		
First joint pari passu 
charge on surplus 
land for Rupees 66.67 
million. 		
	

First pari passu charge 
on land at Rawalpindi 
Division of Rupees 
266.66 million.	
		
		
First pari passu 
charge over movable 
fixed assets of 
Rawalpindi Division 
and surplus piece of 
land measuring 43 
Acres, 7 kanal and 12 
marlas, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road 
of Rupees 933.33 
million.		
	
First pari passu charge 
over land measuring 
121 Acres, situated at 
Main Peshawar Road 
of Rupees 106.666 
million.		
	

Syndicated term finance (Note 7.3)

7.2	 Long term musharika (Note 7.3)

7.3 	 Syndicated term finance facility and musharika facility was arranged by Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited as syndicate 
agent and investment agent.

	

LENDER 2012 2011 TOTAL
FACILITY

INTEREST
REPRICING

INTEREST
PAYABLE

RATE OF
INTEREST PER 

ANNUM

NUMBER OF
INSTALLMENTS

SECURITY

……….RUPEES IN THOUSAND……..
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Habib Bank 
Limited

Habib Bank 
Limited (Note 7.5)

HSBC Bank Middle 
East Limited (Note 
7.6)

Allied Bank 
Limited (Note 7.7)

Allied Bank 
Limited (Note 7.8)

Total

	  439,178 
	

	  740,519 

	
	  190,476 
	

	 1,497,000 
	

	 1,533,611 
	

	  
4,400,784 

	  614,849 
	

	  790,519 
	

	  -   
	

	 1,498,200 
	

	 1,600,290 
	

	  
4,503,858 

	 1,160,000 
	

	  790,520 
	

	  200,000 

	

	 1,500,000 
	

 
	 1,600,290 
	

	 5,250,810 

 - 

Semi-
annually

Semi-
annually

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Semi-
annually

Quarterly

Quarterly

9.70%

6 Months 
KIBOR + 3% 

6 Months 
KIBOR + 
1.25%

3 Months 
KIBOR + 1%

 - 

Nine semi annual 
i n s t a l l m e n t s 
commenced on June 
2010 and ending on 
June 2013.

Three equal quarterly 
installments of 
Rupees 25 million 
each commenced 
on January 2012 and 
ended on June 2012 
and twenty six equal 
quarterly installments 
of Rupees 27.52 
million commenced 
on September 2012 
and ending on 
December 2018.

Twenty one equal 
quarterly installments 
commenced on May 
2012 and ending on 
May 2017.

Twenty six quarterly 
installments commenced 
on September 2011 and 
ending on December 
2018 as per following 
schedule:

Period 	 (Rupees in                                                
	 thousand)  
                                
September 
2012-June 2015	 37,500
September 
2015-June 2016             44,500
September 
2016-June 2017             56,000
September 
2017-June 2018             70,000
September 
2018-December 2018	181,000

Twenty four equal 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
March 2012.

First pari passu equitable 
hypothecation/ mortgage 
charge of Rupees 2,250 
million on all present 
and future fixed assets of 
Subsidiary Company and 
personal guarantees of 
the directors of Subsidiary 
Company.		
		
First pari passu equitable 
h y p o t h e c a t i o n / 
mortgage charge of 
Rupees 2,250 million on 
all present and future 
land, building and plant 
and machinery and 
personal guarantee 
along with PNWS 
of the directors of 
Subsidiary Company 
and subordination 
of the entire sum of 
directors/sponsors loan 
outstanding at any 
point in time.

First pari passu charge 
of Rupees 200 million 
over present and future 
assets of the Subsidiary 
Company and ranking 
hypothecation charge for 
Rupees 120 million over 
present and future current 
assets and personal 
guarantees of directors of 
Subsidiary Company.	
	
First pari passu charge 
over all present and 
future fixed assets of 
Subsidiary Company 
amounting to Rupees 
3,333 million.	
	

First pari passu charge 
over all present and 
future fixed assets of 
Subsidiary Company 
amounting to Rupees 
3,333 million.

7.4	 Long term loans

LENDER 2012 2011 TOTAL
FACILITY

INTEREST
REPRICING

INTEREST
PAYABLE

RATE OF
INTEREST PER 

ANNUM

NUMBER OF
INSTALLMENTS

SECURITY

……….RUPEES IN THOUSAND……..
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	 7.5	 During the  financial  year 2011, Company has entered into restructuring agreement with HBL 
for Rupees790.52 million. The purpose of this loan is to restructure the existing loans for import 
of Waste Heat Recovery Plant. As per terms of restructuring agreement, the principal balance is 
repayable in nine years including the grace period of twenty four months applicable from cut off 
date 31 December 2009. 

		  Upto December 2015, HBL agrees to give a discount on applicable mark up rate, provided that mark 
up is serviced regularly and repayment term are strictly adhered.

		  After rebate, mark up rate will be as follows:

		  From January 2010 to December 2013    6M KIBOR + 1%

		  From January 2013 to December 2015    6M KIBOR + 2%

		  From January 2015 to December 2018    6M KIBOR + 3%
	
	 7.6	 During the current year, the Company has restructured its existing short term loan of Rupees 160 

million and running finance from HSBC Bank Middle East Limited into a medium term loan of 
Rupees 200 million. 

	
	 7.7	 Syndicated term finance facility was arranged by Allied Bank Limited as lead arranger and investment 

agent. Mark up on syndicated loan will be increased to 3M KIBOR + 1.7% after 5 years or complete 
settlement of deferred mark up, whichever is later.Mark up on syndicated loan will be increased to 
3M KIBOR + 1.7% after 5 years or complete settlement of deferred mark up, whichever is later.

	
	 7.8	 As a consequence of restructuring of Syndicated Term finance certificates and Islamic Sukuk 

Certificates and Musharaka agreement, outstanding markup amounting to Rupees 1,600.29 million 
for the period from December 2009 to March 2011 was deferred by way of Second Addendum to 
the Syndicated Term Finance Agreement and Third Supplementary Murabaha Finance Agreement 
dated 30 March 2010. It carries nil return. The restructuring referred above did not result on an 
overall basis in substantial modifications of the original financing terms.

	
	 7.9	 Current portion of long term loan and musharika include overdue installments amounting to 

Rupees 166.114 million (2011: Rupees 97.118 million).
	
	 7.10	K ohinoor Sugar Mills Limited (KSML)
	
		  Liability has been settled after the reporting period through an agreement with KSML.

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
8.	 REDEEMABLE CAPITAL 			 
				  
	 Islamic Sukuk certificates under musharaka agreement		   8,289,800 	  8,296,600 
	 Less: Sukuk certificates paid during the year		   6,800 	  6,800 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities	 16	  1,100,000 	  306,800 

				     7,183,000 	  7,983,000 
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		  The Subsidiary Company has issued Islamic Sukuk Certificates under Musharaka agreement amounting 
to Rupees 8 billion during the year ended 30 June 2008.  In the financial year 2010, the Subsidiary 
Company has issued new Sukuk Certificates (as Bridge Finance) to existing Sukuk lenders amounting 
to Rupees 300 million. During the current financial year, the Subsidiary Company has  arranged to  
reschedule the repayment of additional sukuk Rupees 300 million which was due in bullet in March, 
2012.

		  The Subsidiary Company has issued Islamic Sukuk Certificates under Musharaka agreement amounting 
to Rupees 8 billion during the year ended 30 June 2008.  In the financial year 2010, the Subsidiary 
Company has issued new Sukuk Certificates (as Bridge Finance) to existing Sukuk lenders amounting 
to Rupees 300 million. During the current financial year, the Subsidiary Company has  arranged to  
reschedule the repayment of additional sukuk Rupees 300 million which was due in bullet in March, 
2012.				  
	

		  The salient terms and conditions of secured Sukuk issue of Rupees 8.3 billion made by the Subsidiary 
Company are detailed below:				  
	

		  - Lead Arranger	 Allied Bank Limited (ABL)
		  - Shariah Advisor	 Meezan Bank Limited
	 	 - Purpose	 Balance sheet reprofiling and replacement of conventional debts 
			   with Shariah Compliant Financing.		
		  - Investors	 Banks, DFIs, NBFI and any other person.		
		  - Tenor of sukkuk issue of
			   Rupees 8.000 billion 			 

	      9 Years including grace period of 2.75 years and repayment is to 
			        be made in 6.25 years.			 

	 Rupees 300.000 million 			 
	       	Repayment is to be made in bullet in March 2012

		  - Mark up rate
			   3 months KIBOR plus 100 bps
			   Mark up will be increased to 3 months KIBOR  plus 170 bps after 5 
			   years or complete settlement of deferred mark-up, whichever 
			   is later.		

	
		  - Musharaka Investment  repurchase			 

		
			   30 outstanding quarterly installments will be paid as per following 
			   schedule:		

	
			            Period	 Rupees in million
		
			   September 2012 - June 2015	 200.00
			   September 2015 - June 2016	 237.50
			   September 2016 - June 2017	 300.00
			   September 2017 - June 2018	 375.00
			   September 2018 - December 2018	 966.50		

	
		  - Rental and mark up payments	Rentals are payable quarterly in arrears. Rentals, during the year, 

have been calculated at mark up rates ranging from 12.88% to 14.57% (2011: 13.20% to 14.59%) per 
annum. 			 

		  - Form & delivery of Sukuk

		  The Sukuk have been issued under section 120 “issue of securities and redeemable capital not 
based on interest” of the Companies Ordinance 1984. The Sukuk Certificates have been registered 
and inducted into the Central Depository System (“CDS”) of the Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan(“CDC”).			 
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	 	 - Security		 First Sukuk issue of Rupees 8,000 million is secured against first 
				   Pari passu charge over all present and future fixed assets of the 
				   Company amounting to Rupees 10.667 million. New Sukuk 
				   certificates issued as bridge finance amounting to Rupees 300 
				   million is secured against ranking charge on fixed assets and specific 
				   properties comprising of 393 kanals at Kala Shah Kaku and personal 
			   security of directors.			 

	
	 	 - Trustee / investors’ agent	 Allied Bank Limited			 

	
		  - Transaction structure		 The facility as approved by Meezan Bank Limited, shariah advisor 
			   of  the issue, is as follows:			 

	
			   (a) Investors (as Investor Co-owners) and the Subsidiary Company 
			   (as managing Co-owner) have entered into a Musharaka Agreement 
				   as partners for the purpose of acquiring Musharaka assets from the 
			   Subsidiary Company (acting as Seller) and jointly own these 
			   Musharaka assets.			 

	
			   (b) Investors have appointed ABL to act as Investor Agent for the 
			   Sukuk Issue.			 

	
			   (c) Investor co-owners have contributed their share in the 
			   Musharaka in cash that has been utilised by managing co-owner for 
			   acquiring Musharaka assets. Managing co-owner has contributed 
			   its Musharaka share in kind.			 

	
			   (d) Upon acquisition of Musharaka assets, Investor Agent and 
			   managing co-owner have  executed Assets Purchase Agreement 
			   with the Company (acting as Seller).			 

	
			   (e) The Subsidiary Company (as Issuer) has issued Sukuk Certificates 
			   to Investors that represent latter’s undivided share in the Musharaka 
			   assets.			 

	
			   (f) Investors have made the usufruct of their undivided share in the 
			   Musharaka assets available to the Subsidiary Company against 
			   rental payments linked to the rental bench marked.		

		
			   (g) The Subsidiary Company will purchase Musharaka share of 
			   investors on quarterly basis after expiry of 2.75 years from the 
			   rescheduling date.			 

	
	 	 - Sell Down / Transferability		 As Sukuks have been induced into Central Depository Company 
			   (CDC), transfers are made in accordance with Central Depository 
			   Act, 1997 and other applicable CDC regulations.	

	
	 	 - Call option	 The issuer may, at any time after expiry of one year from the issue 
			   date, purchase all or any of the sukuk units from the certificate 
			   holders  at their applicable Buy Out Prices (pre-purchase) to be 
			   calculated subject to the provisions of the trust deed, sale 
			   undertaking and the terms and conditions therein.
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
9.	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE			 
				  
	 Future minimum lease payments		   1,308,483 	  1,338,606 
	 Less: Un-amortized finance charges		   111,284 	  134,206 
	 Less: Security deposits adjustable on expiry of lease term		   30,000 	  30,000 

	 Present value of future minimum lease payments		   1,167,199 	  1,174,400 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities	 16	  904,073 	  667,191 

				     263,126 	  507,209  

	 9.1	 The future minimum lease payments of Holding Company have been discounted at implicit 
interest rates which range from 6.30% to 17.40% (2011: from 6.00% to 18.85%) per annum to arrive 
at their present values. The lease rentals are payable in monthly and quarterly installments. In case 
of any default, an additional charge at the rate of 0.1 percent per day shall be payable. Taxes, repairs, 
replacements and insurance costs are to be borne by the Company. The lease agreements carry 
renewal and purchase option at the end of the lease term. There are no financial restrictions in lease 
agreements. These are secured by deposit of Rupees 20.874 million (2011: Rupees 22.098 million) 
included in long term deposits, demand promissory notes, personal guarantees and pledge of 
sponsors’ shares in public limited companies.				  
	

	 9.2	 The Subsidiary Company had entered into original lease agreement dated 17 February 2007 
amounting to Rupees 280 million with Meezan Bank Limited (MBL) to acquire eight units of 
Preheater Cyclones. As per terms of original lease agreement the facility tenor was six years with a 
grace period of 18 months on principal component. 				  
	

		  As per the lease agreement tenor of the lease facility is 3.75  years with grace period of 12 months 
from 1st post restructuring profit payment dated 17 May 2010. Principal amount is payable in 
12 equal quarterly installments commencing from 17 May 2011. Mark up is  payable quarterly in 
arrears starting from 17 May 2011. Lease facility carries profit at the rate of three months KIBOR 
plus 2.25% per annum with floor of 2.25% per annum and cap of 28% per annum. Effective mark-
up rates, during the current financial year, ranged between 14.10% to 15.54% (2011: 14.93% to 
15.88%) per annum. Facility is secured through exclusive ownership of leased assets in the name of 
MBL and personal guarantees of the Company’s directors.			 
		

		  The Subsidiary Company has not paid principal amount of lease amounting Rupees 13.89 million 
from Meezan Bank which became over due on 17 May 2012, and it remained overdue at the year 
end and was grouped under current liabilities.				  
	

	 9.3	 The Subsidiary Company, during the financial year ended 30 June 2006, had entered into a forward 
lease agreement with Islamic Corporation for Development of the private sector, Jeddah (ICD - a 
subsidiary of Islamic Development Bank) to finance power generation equipment of the expansion 
project of 6,700 tpd. The lease agreement is for a period of 8 years including a grace period of 2 
years. The first rental had become due on 15 December 2008 whereas the final lease rentals will be 
due on 15 June 2014. The lease finance facility carries interest at the rate of six months U.S.$ LIBOR 
plus a spread of 2.5% per annum. The effective interest rate charged by ICD, during the current year, 
ranged between 2.90 % to 3.28 %(2011: 2.96% to 3.25%) per annum. The facility is secured against 
the first exclusive charge on power generation plant.				  
	

	 9.3.1	 The Subsidiary Company has not paid principal amounting to Rupees 602.88 million to ICD for the  
period from 15 December 2009 and 15 June 2012 respectively. These installments were overdue at 
the year end and grouped under current liabilities.				  
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		  The Subsidiary Company has entered into an interest rate swapping agreement with Standard 
Chartered Bank in respect of this lease finance facility. The agreement became effective from 02 
February 2009 and has the following significant terms: 				  
	

		  Notional amount 		 As per amortization schedule starting from USD 11.54 million 
			   in accordance with repayment schedule of the facility.	

	
		  Maturity	 16 June 2014				  

			 
		  Mark-up to be paid by the Company 
		  on notional amount 	 2.45% per annum.			 

				  
		  Mark-up (to be received)	 USD-LIBOR-BBA six months except for the initial calculation 
			   period which shall be the linear interpolation of the 4 months 
			   and 5 months floating rate option.

	 9.4	 Future minimum lease payments and their present values are regrouped as under:		
		

			                                30 June 2012	                                  30 June 2011

			   Not later	 Later than	
Not later

	 Later than
			 

than one
	 one year	

than one
	 one year

			   year	 but not later 	
year

	 but not later
				    than five years		  than five years

		   	                                                                                 ------------------(Rupees in thousand)--------------- 
			 
		  Future minimum lease payments	  1,007,193 	  301,290 	  769,647 	  568,959 
		  Less: Unamortized finance charge	  103,120 	  8,164 	  102,456 	  31,750 
		  Less: Security deposits adjustable 
		            on expiry of lease term	  -   	  30,000 	  -   	  30,000 
		  Present value of future minimum 
		     lease payments	  904,073 	  263,126 	  667,191 	  507,209  

10.	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS			 
				  
	 These represent interest-free security deposits from stockists and are repayable on cancellation or 

withdrawal of the dealerships. These are being utilized by the Subsidiary Company in accordance with 
the terms of dealership agreements.			 

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
11.	 RETIREMENT BENEFITS			 
				  
	 Accumulated compensated absences	  11.1 	  22,322 	  19,149 
	 Gratuity	  11.2 	  28,604 	  13,030 

			    50,926 	  32,179 
				  
	 11.1	 Accumulated compensated absences			 
					   
		  Balance at the beginning of the year		   19,149 	  19,629 
		  Provision made during the year		   7,918 	  6,424 
		  Payments made during the year		   (4,745)	  (6,904)

		  Balance at the end of the year		   22,322 	  19,149 
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	 11.2	 Gratuity
			 
		  The latest actuarial valuation of the Subsidiary Company’s defined benefit plan, were conducted at 30 

June 2012 using projected unit credit method. Detail of obligation for defined benefit plan is as follows:
			 
			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
		  The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:
		  Present value of defined benefit obligation		   84,902 	  82,275 
		  Fair value of plan assets		   (52,099)	  (50,914)
					   
		  Deficit in the plan		   32,803 	  31,361 
		  Unrecognized actuarial gain		   (4,199)	  (18,331)
					   
		  Liability at end of the year		   28,604 	  13,030 
					   
		  Liability as at beginning of the year		   13,030 	  6,864 
		  Charge for the year		   9,877 	  10,391 
		  Contribution made during the year		   (1,528)	  (4,225)
		  Amount transferred to the Subsidiary Company		   7,225 	  -   

		  Net liability at end of the year		   28,604 	  13,030 
					   
		  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows: 
		
		  Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year	  82,275 	  77,070 
		  Current service cost		   4,476 	  4,397 
		  Interest cost		   11,518 	  9,248 
		  Benefits paid		   (3,178)	  (4,225)
		  Actuarial gain		   (10,190)	  (4,215)

		  Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year	  84,901 	  82,275 
					   
		  The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows: 		

	
		  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year		   50,914 	  43,201 
		  Expected return on plan assets		   7,128 	  5,184 
		  Contributions made during the year		   1,528 	  4,225 
		  Benefits paid during the year		   (3,178)	  (4,225)
		  Transferred to the Subsidiary Company		   (7,225)	  -   
		  Actuarial gain 		   2,932 	  2,529 

		  Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year		   52,099 	  50,914 
					   
		  Actual return on plan assets		   10,060 	  7,713 
					   
		  Plan assets comprise of:			 
		  Term deposit receipts 		   27,885 	  24,192 
		  National Investment Trust Units		   23,415 	  20,508 
		  Profit receivable from provident fund		   -   	  503 
		  Cash at bank		   798 	  5,711 
					   
				     52,098 	  50,914
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			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)
		  Charged to profit and loss are as follows:			 
					   
		  Current service cost		  4,476 	 4,397 
		  Interest cost		  11,519 	 9,248 
		  Expected return on plan assets		  (7,128)	 (5,184)
		  Acturial losses charge		  1,010 	 1,930 

				    9,877 	 10,391

		  Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation	 	
	

		  Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the 
surplus of gratuity fund for  five years is as follows:

			   2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008
			     	---------------- Rupees in thousand -------------

		  Present value of defined benefit obligation	 (84,901) 	 (82,275)	  (77,070)	  (60,082)	  (50,663)
		  Fair Value of plan assets	 52,098	  50,914 	  43,201 	  47,997 	  61,382 
							     
		  (Deficit) / surplus in the plan	 (32,803)	  31,361 	  33,869 	  (12,085)	  10,719 
							     
		  Experience adjustment on obligation	 (10,190)	  (4,215)	  7,750 	  3,216 	  (1,653)
							     
		  Experience adjustment on plan assets	 2,932 	 2,529 	  (412)	  (17,140)	  (6,697)

		  The Subsidiary’s Company’s policy with regard to actuarial gains / losses is to follow the minimum 
recommended approach under IAS 19: “Employee Benefits”.

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
12.	D EFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY			 
	 This comprises of following :			  				  
	 Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary 
	    differences in respect of:			 
	 - Accelerated tax depreciation		   4,123,000 	  3,467,968 
	 - Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets		   -   	  2,114,100 
	 - Surplus on revaluation of investment		   -   	  238,717 				  
				     4,123,000 	  5,820,785 
				  
	D eferred tax asset on deductible temporary 
	    differences in respect of:		  					  
	 - Lease finances		   106,831 	  137,482 
	 - Unused tax losses		   3,540,652 	  2,992,582 
	 - Employees’ compensated absences		   6,617 	  5,552 
	 - Minimum tax recoverable against normal tax charge in future years	  328,725 	  270,211 				  
				     3,982,825 	  3,405,827 				  
				     140,175 	  2,414,958
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	 12.1	 Deferred tax asset relating to Subsidiary Company amounting to Rupees 1,100 million, on unused 
tax losses, has not been recognized in these consolidated financial statements being prudent. 
Management of Subsidiary Company is of the view that recognition of deferred tax asset shall be 
re-assessed as at 30 June 2013.			 

  
			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
13.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
				  
	 Creditors		   1,146,984 	  1,231,124 
	 Bills payable - secured		   1,235,302 	  1,333,468 
	 Accrued liabilities		   673,729 	  623,144 
	 Security deposits, repayable on demand		   42,296 	  43,741 
	 Advances from customers		   312,085 	  433,213 
	 Contractors’ retention money		   62,259 	  55,665 
	 Royalty and excise duty payable		   83,321 	  17,951 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund		   40,032 	  20,905 
	 Workers’ welfare fund		   7,686 	  7,686 
	 Excise duty payable	 	  517,051 	  655,386 
	 Unclaimed dividend		   4,163 	  4,214 
	 Withholding tax payable		   5,988 	  30,817 
	 Payable to employees’ provident fund trust		   55,891 	  39,121 
	 Sales tax payable		   338,994 	  223,204 
	 Others		   53,224 	  25,312 

				     4,579,005 	  4,744,951 
14.	 ACCRUED MARK-UP			 

	 Long term financing 		   194,190 	  250,410 
	 Redeemable capital		   337,093 	  391,012 
	 Short term borrowings		   236,572 	  279,355 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   175,677 	  100,522
 
				     943,532 	  1,021,299  
15.	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS			 
				  
	 From banking companies - secured			 
				  
	 Short term running finances 	 15.1	  3,364,504 	  5,607,276 
	 Other short term finances	 15.2	  3,088,618 	  1,815,701 
	 State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) refinances	 15.3	  1,135,000 	  1,435,000 
	 Temporary bank overdraft	 15.4	  25,373 	  356,954 
				  
				     7,613,495 	  9,214,931 

	 15.1	 The running finance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 4,452 million (2011: 
Rupees 6,841 million). The rates of mark-up range from 3.49% to 25% (2011: from 3.49% to 24.00%) 
per annum. These arrangements are secured by pledge of raw material, charge on current assets of 
the Company including  hypothecation of work-in-process, stores and spares, letters of credit, firm 
contracts, book debts and personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.
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	 15.2	 The other short term finance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 4,524.5 
million (2011: Rupees 2,426 million). The rates of mark-up range from 4.50% to 25.00% (2011: from 
13.45% to 25.00%) per annum. These arrangements are secured by pledge of raw material, charge 
on current assets of the Company including  hypothecation of work-in-process, stores and spares, 
letters of credit, firm contracts, book debts and personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.

		
	 15.3	 The export refinance facilities sanctioned by various banks aggregate to Rupees 1,135 million 

(2011: Rupees 1,435 million). The rate of mark-up is 11.00 %  (2011: from 8.50% to 11.00%) per 
annum. These arrangements are secured by way of charge on current assets of the Company and 
personal guarantees of the sponsor directors.

		
	 15.4	 This represents temporary overdraft due to cheques issued by the Subsidiary Company in excess of 

balance with banks which will be presented for payment in subsequent period.

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
16.	 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
				  
	 Long term financing 	 7	 1,483,747 	 1,014,387
	 Redeemable capital	 8	  1,100,000 	  306,800 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 9	  904,073 	  667,191 

				     3,487,820 	  1,988,378  
17.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 

	 17.1	 Contingencies

		  Holding company
		
		  a) The Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore for tax year 2003  

under section 129/132 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, which is pending adjudication. The tax loss was 
restricted to Rupees 27.540 million against declared loss of Rupees 122.933 million thereby creating a 
demand of Rupees 12.396 million. In addition to the above, another appeal for tax year 2003 against 
order under section 221 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated 24 January 2009, on the disallowance of 
depreciation expense of Rupees 62.665 million has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 
which is pending adjudication. This is a cross appeal. Although the learned Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (Appeals) has already annulled the order under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, vide order dated 30 July 2009, the Taxation Officer  has illegally repeated the original assessment. 
Therefore, an appeal has also been filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 187 of 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2003, the appellate order of which is pending. The revenue 
involved on account of penalty was Rupees 17.484 million. The Company has strong grounds and is 
expecting favourable outcome.

		
		  b) The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under section 122(5A) 

/ 122(1) / 129 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2004 which is pending adjudication. The loss 
for the year has been assessed at Rupees 255.684 million against declared loss of Rupees 255.886 million 
creating refund of Rupees 7.498 million. Department has also filed cross appeal mainly on issue of 
chargeability of 3.5% tax on local purchases amounting to Rupees 950.547 million. The Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue has set-aside the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and remanded back 
to Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) with the direction to readjudicate the issue after considering 
the evidences produced. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.

		
		  c) The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under section 122(5A) 

/ 122(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2005, which is pending adjudication. The Income for 
the year has been assessed at Rupees 113.440 million against declared loss of Rupees 205.576 million 
creating payable of Rupees 74.576 million. Department has also filed cross appeal mainly on issue of 
chargeability of 3.5% tax on local purchases  amounting to Rupees  828.839 million. The Appellate Tribunal 



127

Inland Revenue has set-aside the order of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and remanded back 
to Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) with the direction to readjudicate the issue after considering 
the evidences produced. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.

		
		  d) An appeal for the tax year 2010 has been filed before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue under 

section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2010, which is pending adjudication. The 
income for the year has been assessed, creating payable amounting to Rupees 20.789 million. The appeal 
has been filed on the issue of minimum tax at the rate of 0.5% on turnover can be adjusted against tax 
deducted on exports. The Company has strong grounds and is expecting favourable outcome.

		
		  e) The Company and the tax authorities have filed appeals before different appellate authorities 

regarding sales tax and custom duty matters. Pending the outcome of appeals filed by the Company and 
tax authorities, no provision has been made in these financial statements which on the basis adopted by 
the authorities would amount to Rupees 64.02 million (2011: Rupees 35.555 million), since the Company 
has strong grounds against the assessments framed by the relevant authorities.

		
		  f) The Company has filed recovery suits in civil courts of Rupees 7.908 million (2011: Rupees 8.390 

million) against various suppliers and customers for goods supplied by/ to them. Pending the outcome 
of the cases, no provision there against has been made in these financial statements since the Company 
is confident about favourable outcome of the cases.

		
		  g) The Company has filed a suit before Civil Court, Rawalpindi against demand raised by Sui Northern 

Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 125.830 million. No provision has been made in 
these financial statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome.

		
		  h) An appeal has been filed by Rawalpindi Cantonment Board (RCB) before Supreme Court of Pakistan 

against judgement passed by Lahore High Court whereby demand created by RCB of Rupees 7.812 
million (2011: Rupees 7.812 million) was set aside. No provision has been made in these financial 
statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome of the case. 

		
		  i) Three cases are pending before the Punjab Labour Appellate Tribunal, Shadman 1, Lahore regarding 

the reinstatement into service of three employees dismissed from their jobs. No provision has been 
made in these financial statements, since the Company is confident about favourable outcome of the 
cases.

		
		  j) The Company has not recognised fuel adjustment charges amounting to Rupees 75.596 million (2011: 

Rupees Nil) notified by National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA), as the Company has 
obtained stay from Honorable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad against payment of fuel adjustment 
charges as billed by electric supply companies (IESCO/LESCO). The management based on advice of the 
legal counsel, believes that it has strong grounds of appeal and payment / accrual of such charges will 
not be required.

		
		  k)  Guarantees  issued by  various  commercial banks,  in respect of  financial  and  operational obligations 

of the Company, to various institutions and corporate bodies aggregate Rupees 243.391 million as at 30 
June 2012 (2011: Rupees 249.620  million).

		
		  Subsidiary company
		
		  a) The Subsidiary has filed writ petitions before the Lahore High Court against the legality of judgment 

passed by the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal whereby the Subsidiary was held liable 
on account of wrongful adjustment of input sales tax on raw materials and electricity bills; the amount 
involved pending adjudication before the Lahore High Court amounting to Rupees 13.25 million. No 
provision has been made in these financial statements in respect of the aforementioned matter as the 
management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  b) The Lahore High Court, upon the Company’s appeal, vide its order dated 06 November 2001 has 

decided the matter in favour of the Subsidiary; however, the Collector of Customs has preferred a petition 
before the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending adjudication. No provision has been made in 



128

these financial statements in respect of the above stated amount as the management is confident that 
the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  c) The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against 

the judgment delivered by the Lahore High Court in favour of the Subsidiary in a writ petition. The 
Subsidiary, through the said writ petition, had challenged the demand  raised by the FBR for payment 
of duties and taxes on the plant and machinery imported by the Subsidiary pursuant to the exemption 
granted in terms of SRO 484 (I) / 92 dated 14 May 1992. The FBR, however, alleged that the said plant 
& machinery could be locally manufactured and duties and taxes were therefore not exempted. A total 
demand of Rupees 1,386.72 million was raised by the FBR out of which an amount of Rupees 269.33 
million was deposited by the Subsidiary as undisputed liability. 

		
		  d) The Customs Department has filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the 

judgment of Sindh High Court, which held that dump trucks were part of plant and machinery and 
the Tribunal had rightly subjected them to concessionary rate of duty. The Subsidiary had paid excess 
customs duties amounting to Rupees 7.35 million on these trucks. The appeal is pending adjudication 
before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the 
management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  e) The Subsidiary has filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment of the 

Division Bench of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. The Division Bench, by judgment dated 15 September 
2008, has partly accepted the appeal by declaring that the levy and collection of infrastructure cess / fee 
prior to December 28, 2006 was illegal and ultra vires and after December 28, 2006, it was legal and the 
same was collected by the Excise Department in accordance with law. The appeal has been filed against 
the declaration that after 28 December 2006, the Excise Department has collected the infrastructure 
cess / fee in accordance with law. The Province of Sindh and Excise and Taxation Department has also 
preferred an appeal against the judgment decided against them. The Supreme Court consolidated both 
the appeals and were set aside. Thereafter, law has been challenged in constitution petition in the Sindh 
High Court Karachi. Stay has been granted by the High Court on 31 May 2011 on payment of 50% of 
the cess to the Excise Department and on furnishing of bank guarantee for remaining 50% to them. The 
petition is pending  for hearing and stay is continuing.

		
		  The total financial exposure of the Subsidiary involved in the case amounts to Rupees 59.56 million. 

In the event of an adverse decision in appeal, the guarantees aggregating to Rupees 135.70 million 
furnished by the Subsidiary will be encashed by the Government of Sindh. No provision has been made 
in these financial statements as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will 
be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  f) Competition Commission of Pakistan, vide order dated 27 August 2009, has imposed penalty on 20 

cement factories of Pakistan at the rate of 7.5% of the turnover value. The Commission has imposed 
penalty amounting to Rupees 586.19 million on the Subsidiary. The Commission has alleged that 
provisions of section 4(1) of the Competition Commission Ordinance, 2007 have been violated. However, 
after the abeyance of Islamabad High Court pursuant to the judgment of Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan dated 31 July 2009, the titled petition has become infructuous and the Company has filed a writ 
petition no. 15618/2009 before the Lahore High Court. No provision has been made in these financial 
statements as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of 
the Subsidiary.

		
		  g) The Additional Collector, Karachi has issued show cause notice alleging therein that the Subsidiary has 

wrongly claimed the benefits of SRO No. 575(I)/2006 dated 05 June 2006 on the import of pre-fabricated 
buildings structure. Consequently, the Subsidiary is liable to pay Government dues amounting to Rupees 
5.55 million. The Subsidiary has submitted reply to the show cause notice and currently proceedings are 
pending before the Additional Collector. No provision has been made in these financial statements as 
the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  h)The customs department has filed an appeal against the judgment dated 19 May 2009, passed in 

favour of the Subsidiary pursuant to which the Subsidiary is not liable to pay custom duty amount of 
Rupees 0.59 million relating to import of some machinery vide L/C No. 0176-01-46-518-1201 in terms of 
SRO 484(1)/92 dated May 14, 1992, and SRO 978(1)/95 dated October 04, 1995. The appeal is pending 
before the Honorable Lahore High Court.
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		  i) The Subsidiary has preferred an appeal against the order in original No. 576/99 dated 18 September 
1999, whereby the Subsidiary was denied the benefit of SRO 484(1)/92 dated May 14, 1992, and SRO 
978(1)/95 dated 04 October 1995. Accordingly the demand of Rupees 0.81 million was raised against 
the Subsidiary. Appeal was dismissed by Central Excise and Sales Tax Tribunal on 19 May 2009. The 
Subsidiary has filed petition before the Honorable Lahore High Court, which is pending adjudication. A 
rectification application under section 194 is also pending before the Customs, Federal Excise and Sales 
Tax, Appellate Tribunal beside the customs reference. No provision has been made in these financial 
statements as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of 
the Subsidiary.

		
		  j)Through order in original No. 18/2009 dated December 24, 2009 (‘ONO’), the Additional Commissioner 

Inland Revenue, (Legal), Large Taxpayers Unit, Lahore (‘ACIR - Legal’) finalized the adjudication 
proceedings in respect of audit conducted by departmental auditors and raised a demand of principal 
Sales Tax and Federal Excise duty (‘FED’) aggregating to Rupees 336.74 million along with default 
surcharge and penalties. The Subsidiary has preferred appeals against this ex parte order under the 
applicable provisions of Sales Tax Act and Federal Excise Act before Commissioner Inland Revenue, 
Appeals  CIR(A). Such appeals have not yet been taken up for hearing by Commissioner Inland Revenue, 
Appeals [CIR(A)]. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the management is 
confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  k) Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has ordered against Subsidiary requiring a demand of Rupees 

82.53 million against default surcharge and penalty of Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty. The imposed 
levies on account of default surcharge and penalties amounting Rupees 15.891 million were quashed by 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue and Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) respectively in favour 
the Subsidiary. Management of the Subsidiary is confident that ultimate outcome of the case will be in 
favour of the Subsidiary and hence no provision is provided for in the financial statements.

		
		  l) In consequence of tax audit conducted by Income Tax Department (the department) for tax year 

2003, the department, vide order dated 31 December 2008, has amended the deemed assessment 
in respect of tax year 2003 under section 122(5) of the ordinance and the Subsidiary’s taxable income 
has been enhanced by Rupees 177.75 million. The Subsidiary has preferred an appeal against aforesaid 
amendment order before the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals), which was disposed off 
through order dated 01 November 2009.

		
		  Through such order, while Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals) upheld the departmental 

contentions on certain issues, a substantial relief was extended, reducing the taxable income for the year 
by an amount of Rupees 107.00 million as against the additions towards taxable income aggregating to 
Rs. 173.00 million contested by the Subsidiary. The Subsidiary has preferred further appeal before the 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals) 
against the disallowances confirmed by him through order. Company’s appeal is pending for hearing by 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). 

		  m) Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue passed an order u/s 122(5A) and made additions of Rupees 
21.60 million in Company’s taxable income and raised a tax demand of Rs. 1.90 million against the 
Subsidiary. The Company has preferred  an appeal before Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals) 
against the above addition in taxable income which relates to the admissibility of initial allowance 
on exchange loss capitalized u/s 76(5) of the Ordinance. Through appellate order dated 30 May 2011 
passed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR(A)), company’s appeal against amendment 
order dated 10 March 2010 earlier passed under section 122 (5A) of Ordinance has been disposed 
off. Through such order, while company’s appeal on the issue of admissibility of initial allowance on 
exchange loss capitalized under section 76(5) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, has not been entertained, 
relief has been allowed regarding the issue of inclusion of “profit on sale of fixed assets” in turnover for 
computing minimum tax liability under section 113 of the Ordinance pending before appellate tribunal. 
The management is confident that the ultimate outcome of this case will be in favour of the Subsidiary.

		
		  n) The deemed assessment earlier made under section 120(1) of the Ordinance has been rectified 

through order dated 10 May 2011 passed u/s 221 of the Ordinance on the grounds that minimum tax 
liability payable u/s 113 of the Ordinance of Rs 34.60 million for the tax year 2010 was  leviable in addition 
to taxes payable under various final tax regimes. The Subsidiary has contested the rectification order in 
appeal before the ATIR, which has not been taken up for hearing to date. 
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		  o) The deemed assessment earlier made under section 120(1) of the Ordinance has been rectified 
through order dated 02 February  2011  passed u/s 221 of the Ordinance on the grounds that minimum 
tax liability payable u/s 113 of the Ordinance of Rupees 35.69 million was also leviable in addition to 
taxes payable under various final tax regimes. The Subsidiary Company has contested the rectification 
order in appeal before the ATIR, which has not been taken up for hearing to date. 

		
		  p) Through order in original No.18/2009 dated December 24, 2009, the tax department finalized the 

adjudication proceeding in respect of audit conducted by the department auditors and raised a demand 
of principal sales tax and FED aggregating to Rupees 336.74 million along with applicable default 
surcharges and penalties. The Subsidiary preferred appeal against such ONO under the applicable 
provisions of Sales Tax Act, 1990  & Federal Excise Act, 2005 before the Commissioner of Inland Revenue 
(Appeals). It is, however appropriate to highlight that the Subsidiary has also filed a writ petition with the 
Honorable Lahore High Court against the above referred Order-In-Original demand. 

		
		  q) Through Order-In-Original No. 10/2011 dated July 30, 2011, Subsidiary’s refund claim of Central Excise 

Duty (CED) of Rupees 913.01 million representing the excess payment of duty based on an inadvertent 
computation of related ‘retail price’ of cement products manufactured and supplied by the Company, was 
rejected principally on the grounds that related incidence of duty has been passed on to the consumers 
and hence the resultant refund claim is hit by the mischief of provisions of then applicable section 3(d) 
of the Central Excise Act, 1944.

		
		  The preferred appeal against the said order before the CIR(A) both on legal as well as factual grounds, 

however, such appeal was not entertained by the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals) and 
accordingly, the matter has been further agitated in appeal by the company before the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR).

		
		  r) Through Order-In-Original No. 27/2012 dated 8 March 2012 (“ONO”), principal sales tax and federal 

excise duty aggregating to Rupees 38.45 million (along with applicable default surcharge and penalty) 
was held recoverable from Subsidiary on the grounds that the Subsidiary allegedly claimed input sales 
tax in respect of purchases made from un-registered persons/inactive suppliers. While disposing the 
Subsidiary’s appeals Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals) remanded the matter to department 
for appraisal of relevant facts afresh. The remand proceedings have not yet been taken up by the 
department and are as such pending.

		
		  s) Through the Writ Petition No.22485/1997 titled” Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited” Vs “ Federation of 

Pakistan and others”, the Subsidiary has sought a declaration that it is not liable to pay advance income 
tax in terms of Section 53 of Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 on the ground that on proven facts it is not 
liable to payment of any income tax for the year ending on 30 June 1998. The petition is pending before 
the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore.

		
		  t) Guarantees issued by various commercial banks, in respect of financial and operational obligations of 

the Subsidiary, to various institutions and corporate bodies aggregate Rupees 413.867 million as at 30 
June 2012 (2011: Rupees 343.179 million).

		
	 17.2	 Commitments in respect of:
	
	 a)	 Commitments for capital expenditure other than letter of credit amount to Rupees 177.805 million 

(2011: Rupees 235.014 million).

	 b)	 Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure amount to Rupees 265.433 million (2011: Rupees 
86.583 million).			     

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)	
18.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT			 
				  
	 Operating fixed assets   (Note 18.1)			 
		  Owned		   25,029,089 	  30,192,678 
		  Leased		   899,781 	  962,220 
	 Capital work in progress (Note 18.5)		   69,514 	  3,796,034
 
			    	 25,998,384 	  34,950,932  
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			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)	
	 18.3	D epreciation charged during the year has 
		     been allocated as follows:			 
					   
		  Cost of sales	 32	  1,590,680 	  1,574,368 
		  Administrative expenses	 34	  37,596 	  36,643 

				     1,628,276 	  1,611,011   

	 18.4	 Ownership of the housing colony’s assets included in the operating fixed assets is shared by the 
Subsidiary Company jointly with Pak American Fertilizer Limited in ratio of 101:245 since the time 
when both the companies were managed by Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (PIDC). 
These assets are in possession of the housing colony establishment for mutual benefits.

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)

	 18.5	 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS			 
					   
		  Tangible assets			 
		  Civil works		   -   	  105 
		  Plant and machinery		   33,880 	  3,203,712 
		  Un-allocated capital expenditure	 18.5.1	  1,001 	  477,163 
		  Advances to suppliers against:			 
			   Plant and machinery		   9,237 	  104,999 
			   Purchase of land		   2,000 	  2,000 
			   Furniture and fixture		   17,855 	  -   
			   Vehicles		   1,699 	  4,550 
			   Civil works		   3,842 	  3,505
 
					      69,514 	  3,796,034 
					   
	 18.5.1	 Un-allocated capital expenditure - net			 
					   
		  Opening balance		   477,163 	  274,540 
		  Less: capitalized during the year		   476,162 	  -   

				     1,001 	  274,540 
		  Add: Expenditure incurred during the year:			 
			   Salaries, wages and other benefits		   -   	  10,345 
			   Travelling and conveyance		   -   	  3,372 
			   Vehicles’ running and maintenance		   -   	  184 
			   Finance cost		   -   	  181,077 
			   Legal and professional		   -   	  5,974 
			   Consultancy 		   -   	  -   
			   Communication		   -   	  117 
			   Insurance expenses		   -   	  -   
			   Miscellaneous expenses		   -   	  1,554 
					   
					      1,001 	  477,163
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			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)
19.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS			 
	 Computer software			 
	 Year ended 30 June 			 
	 Opening net book value 		   27,154 	  1,774 
	 Addition		   -   	  36,220 
	 Amortization		   (12,073)	  (10,840)

	 Closing net book value		   15,081 	  27,154 
				  
	 Cost as at 30 June 		   59,470 	  59,470 
	 Accumulated amortization		   (44,389)	  (32,316)

	 Net book value 		   15,081 	  27,154 
				  
	 Amortization rate (per annum)		  33.33%	 33.33%
					   
20.	 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES			 

	 Year ended 30 June			 

	 Opening net book amount		   1,721,714 	  1,720,835 
	 Addition during the year		   5,539 	  -   
	 Fair value gain		   1,633 	  879

	 Closing net book amount		   1,728,886 	  1,721,714 
					   
	 20.1	 The fair value of investment properties comprising land and building situated at Lahore and 

Rawalpindi have been determined at 30 June 2012 by an independent valuer having relevant 
professional  qualifications. The fair value was determined on the basis of professional assessment 
of the current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same location and condition.  

			   2012	 2011
		  Note	 (Rupees in thousand)
21.	 LONG TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES - Secured
			 
	 House building		  2,477 	 2,120 
	 Vehicles		  1,573 	 2,336 
	 Others		  253 	 247 

				    4,303 	 4,703 
	 Less : Current portion of long term loans to employees	 26	 1,916 	 2,172 

				    2,387 	 2,531 
				  
	 21.1	 These loans are secured against charge / lien on employees’ retirement benefits of Subsidiary 

Company and carry interest at the rates ranging from 6.00% to 12.00% per annum (2011: 6.00% to 
12.00% per annum). These loans are recoverable in 30 to 120 monthly installments.

			   2012	 2011
		  	 (Rupees in thousand)
22.	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS			 
				  
	 Security deposits 		   117,570 	  97,080 
	 Less: Current portion shown under current assets 		   (13,705)	  (9,286)

				     103,865 	  87,794  
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
23.	 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS 			 
				  
	 Stores 	 23.1	  1,523,347 	  1,527,972 
	 Spare parts		   1,873,959 	  1,800,578 
	 Loose tools		   31,507 	  38,533 

				     3,428,813 	  3,367,083 
	 Less: Provision against slow moving items		   (6,384)	  (5,744)

				     3,422,429 	  3,361,339 
				  
	 23.1	 This includes stores in transit of Rupees 368.552 million 
		    (2011: Rupees 623.474 million).
			 
24.	 STOCK-IN-TRADE			 
				  
	 Raw materials	 24.1	  820,933 	  575,310 
	 Packing materials		   112,386 	  72,340 
	 Work-in-process		   959,245 	  573,008 
	 Finished goods		   540,780 	  975,678 

				     2,433,344 	  2,196,336 
				  
	 24.1	 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees 140.422 million (2011: Rupees 210.034 million).		

	
	 24.2	 Stock in trade of Rupees 0.941 million (2011: Rupees 303.684 million) is being carried at net 

realizable value. 			 
				  
	 24.3	 The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized during the 

year was Rupees 0.082 million (2011: Rupees 47.216 million).			 
			 

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
25.	 TRADE DEBTS			 
				  
	 Considered good:			 
	 Secured (against letters of credit)		   491,542 	  726,757 
	 Unsecured		   1,071,072 	  540,746 

				     1,562,614 	  1,267,503 
	 Considered doubtful:			 
	 Others - unsecured		   95,217 	  51,054 
	 Less: 	 Provision for doubtful debts			 
		  As at 01 July 		   51,054 	  26,309 
		  Add: Provision for the year	 35	  44,163 	  24,745 

				     95,217 	  51,054 

		  As at 30 June		   -   	  - 
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	 25.1	 As at 30 June  2012, trade debts of Rupees 727.293 million (2011 : Rupees 671.005 million) were past 
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no 
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows: 

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	
		  Upto 1 month		   448,257 	  351,052 
		  1 to 6 months		   150,668 	  205,570 
		  More than 6 months		   128,368 	  114,383 
					   
				     727,293 	  671,005 
					   
	 25.2	 As at 30 June  2012, trade debts of Rupees 95.217 million (2011 : Rupees 51.054 million) were 

impaired and provided for. The ageing of these trade debts was more than three years. 

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
26.	 LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good			 
				  
	 Current portion of long term loans to employees	 21	  1,916 	  2,172 
	 Advances to :			 
	 - Executives		   2,056 	  1,390 
	 - Other employees		   14,729 	  7,708 
	 - Suppliers		   465,013 	  358,390 

			    	 481,798 	  367,488 
	 Letters of credit		   9,860 	  16,732
 
				     493,574 	  386,392 
				  
27.	 SECURITY DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS			 
				  
	 Short term deposits including current portion of long term deposits	  15,043 	  9,286 
	 Margin against:			 
		  Letter of credit		   55,560 	  24,226 
		  Bank guarantee		   58,274 	  51,802 
	 Prepayments		   15,685 	  55,627 

				     144,562 	  140,941 
				  
28.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES
			 
	 Considered good:			 
	 Sales tax refundable		   153,182 	  259,199 
	 Custom duty receivable	  	  3,642 	  3,642 
	 Mark up rate support receivable from financial institutions		   5,983 	  11,689 
	 Export rebate		   38,591 	  42,664 
	 Insurance claims		   5,834 	  281 
	 Research and development support		   472 	  472 
	 Duty draw back		   95,792 	  119,555 
	 Inland freight and subsidy	 28.1	  -   	  62,060 
	 Others		   69,750 	  48,330 
				  
			    373,246 	  547,892 
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	 28.1	 The inland freight subsidy was receivable by Subsidiary Company subject to State Bank of Pakistan  
circular letter no. 6 regarding public notice by Trade Development Authority of Pakistan announcing 
35% of the total inland freight cost as freight subsidy where dispatch location is  more than 100 Km 
from sea port. During the year, Subsidiary Company  has received Rupees 49.33 million as full and 
final claim against inland freight subsidy from State Bank of Pakistan (TDAP) against sanction letter 
for release of payment by Finance Division, Government of Pakistan, Islamabad vide letter No. F. 
No. 4(2) CF-III/2009 dated 13 April 2012. The remaining amount has been reversed against freight 
expense.			    

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
29.	 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS			 
				  
	 Available for sale			 
	 Unquoted			 
	 Security General Insurance Company Limited		   -   	  12,000 
	 Nil (2011 : 10,968,930) ordinary shares of Rupees  10 each fully paid.		

	
	 Equity held Nil (2011 : 16.11%)			 
	 Surplus on revaluation of investment		   -   	  909,391 

			    -   	  921,391 
	 Investments at fair value through profit or loss			 
	 Quoted Companies		   20,251 	  12,817 
	 Loss on remeasurment of fair value during the year		   (518)	  (7,566)

			    19,733 	  5,251 
				  
	 Mutual funds		   14,000 	  16,000 
	 Gain on remeasurment of fair value during the year		   -   	  299 

			    14,000 	  16,299 

			    33,733 	  21,550 

			    33,733 	  942,941  
				  
30.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 
				  
	 Cash in hand		   13,743 	  13,631 
				  
	 Cash at bank:			 
	  - On current accounts		   296,196 	  262,570 
	  - On saving accounts 		   538,790 	  433,275 

			   834,986 	  695,845 

			   848,729 	  709,476 
				  
	 30.1	 The balances in saving accounts carry interest ranging from 0.26% to 11.50% (2011: from 0.20% to 

12%) per annum.			 
				  
	 30.2	 The balances in current and deposit accounts of Holding Company include US $  473,602  (2011: US 

$ 218,867)			 
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
31.	 SALES	 		
				  
	 Export		  8,937,753 	  10,223,035 
	 Local	  	 31.1 	  17,632,184 	  14,724,110 
	 Duty drawback		   -   	  116,458 
	 Export rebate		   37,718 	  46,389 

				     26,607,655 	  25,109,992 
				  

	 31.1	 Local sales		   20,848,068 	  18,359,334 
		  Less :			 
		  Sales tax		   2,103,135 	  1,883,881 
		  Excise duty		   983,313 	  1,618,710 
		  Commission		   129,436 	  132,633 

				     17,632,184 	  14,724,110 
				  
	 31.2	 Exchange gain due  to currency  rate fluctuations  relating  to  export sales of Holding Company 

amounting to  Rupees 61.043 million (2011: Rupees 15.966 million) has been included in export sales.

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
28.	 COST OF SALES			 
				  
	 Raw materials consumed	 32.1	  4,947,011 	  5,885,167 
	 Cloth and yarn procured and consumed		   1,297,425 	  1,443,577 
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits 	 32.2	  1,056,245 	  1,056,288 
	 Dyes and chemicals consumed		   320,531 	  341,963 
	 Processing charges		   14,252 	  13,508 
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed		   1,167,056 	  991,993 
	 Packing materials consumed		   1,289,555 	  1,383,730 
	 Fuel and power		   8,173,961 	  7,504,749 
	 Repair and maintenance		   183,406 	  152,507 
	 Insurance		   70,427 	  66,174 
	 Other factory overheads		   233,881 	  186,446 
	 Amortization		   8,794 	  10,567 
	 Depreciation	 18.3	  1,590,680 	  1,574,368 

			    20,353,224 	  20,611,037 
	 Work-in-process			 
	 Opening stock	 	  573,008 	  983,720 
	 Closing stock	 	  (959,245)	  (573,008)

			    (386,237)	  410,712 

	 Cost of goods manufactured		   19,966,987 	  21,021,749 
				  
	 Finished goods			 
	 Opening stock	 	  975,678 	  1,065,214 
	 Closing stock	 	  (540,780)	  (975,678)

			    434,898 	  89,536
 
	 Cost of sales 		   20,401,885 	  21,111,285 
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			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	 32.1	 Raw materials consumed
			 
		  Opening stock		   402,213 	  728,243 
		  Add: Purchased during the year		   5,225,309 	  5,559,137 

				     5,627,522 	  6,287,380 
		  Less: Closing stock		   (680,511)	  (402,213)

			    	 4,947,011 	  5,885,167

	 32.2	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 29.495 million 
(2011: Rupees 28.918 million) and employee benefit (gratuity) amounting to Rupees 12.060 million 
(2011:  Rupees 8.010 million).  

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
33.	D ISTRIBUTION COST
			 
	 Salaries and other benefits 	 33.1	  95,433 	  82,826 
	 Outward freight and handling		   787,163 	  1,594,860 
	 Clearing and forwarding		   183,587 	  232,933 
	 Commission to selling agents		   93,549 	  83,955 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   28,604 	  25,999 
	 Insurance		   274 	  505 
	 Vehicles’ running expenses		   13,079 	  10,302 
	 Electricity, gas and water		   1,280 	  910 
	 Postage, telephone and fax		   6,043 	  5,781 
	 Legal and professional		   -   	  80 
	 Sales promotion and advertisement		   29,540 	  22,475 
	 Miscellaneous expense		   10,072 	  11,069 

				     1,248,624 	  2,071,695 
				  
	 33.1	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 3.177 million 

(2011: 3.0888 million) and employee benefits (gratuity) amounting to Rupees 1.970 million (2011: 
Rupees 0.350 million).

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
34.	 ADMINISTRATIVE  EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries and other benefits 	 34.1	  198,806 	  185,319 
	 Travelling and conveyance		   26,713 	  20,411 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   14,265 	  13,586 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   2,121 	  7,268 
	 Insurance		   6,343 	  4,481 
	 Vehicles’ running expenses		   25,989 	  21,030 
	 Printing, stationery and periodicals		   14,186 	  10,572 
	 Electricity, gas and water		   4,264 	  2,506 
	 Postage, telephone and fax		   10,697 	  11,160 
	 Legal and professional		   24,724 	  50,804 
	 Security, gardening and sanitation		   19,115 	  20,424 
	 Amortization		   3,279 	  273 
	 Depreciation	 18.3	  37,596 	  36,643 
	 Miscellaneous expense		   39,030 	  40,990
 
		   		   427,128 	  425,467  
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	 34.1	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution of Rupees 6.617 million 
(2011: Rupees 6.064 million) and employee benefits (gratuity) amounting to Rupees 3.670 million 
(2011: Rupees 2.031 million).			 

			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
35.	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 35.1 	  2,814 	  3,257 
	 Donations	 35.2 	  2,325 	  1,526 
	 Loss on disposal of land classified as held for sale		   -   	  34,050 
	 Loss on remeasurement  of fair value of  investments at 
	    fair value through profit or loss 		   -   	  102 
	 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment		   91,837 	  -   
	 Provision for doubtful debts	 25	  44,163 	  24,745 
	 Provision for slow moving stores and spares		   640 	  744 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund		   40,020 	  10,188 
	 Workers’ welfare fund		   9,063 	  5,487 
	 Delay payment surcharge		   114,844 	  155,832 
	 Miscellaneous		   -   	  34 
			    305,706 	  235,965  
				  
	 35.1	 Auditors’ remuneration			 
	 	 Riaz Ahmad and Company 			 
		  Audit fee		   1,200 	  1,200 
		  Certifications		   25 	  408
 
				     1,225 	  1,608 
		  KPMG Taseer Hadi and Company			 
		  Audit fee		   1,546 	  1,546 
		  Out of pocket expenses		   43 	  43 

				     1,589 	  1,589 
		  Hussain Chaudhry and Company			 
		  WPPF audit fee		   -   	  60 

				     2,814 	  3,257 
					   
	 35.2	 None of the directors and their spouses have any interest in the donee’s fund.			 

			 
36.	 OTHER OPERATING INCOME			 
				  
	 Income from financial assets:			 
				  
	 Exchange gain		   4,282 	  5,570 
	 Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	  921,508 	  4,660 
	 Gain on remeasurement  of fair value of  investments at fair 
	    value through profit or loss 		   11 	  -   
	 Return on bank deposits		   29,696 	  5,926 
	 Dividend income		   459 	  1,802
 
			    955,956 	  17,958 
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
	 Income from related parties:			 
				  
	 Dividend income - Security General Insurance Company Limited	  -   	  26,178 
				  
	 Income from non-financial assets:			 
	 Scrap sales		   33,078 	  48,257 
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 18.2	  -   	  12,766 
	 Gain on remeasurement  of fair value of  investment properties		  1,633 	  879 
	 Unclaimed balances written back		   10,066 	  -   
	 Miscellaneous		   8,524 	  27,978
 
			    53,301 	  89,880 

			    1,009,257 	  134,016  
				  
37.	 FINANCE COST
			 
	 Mark-up / finance charges / interest on:			 
	 Long term financing 		   610,435 	  480,581 
	 Redeemable capital		   1,126,386 	  1,155,496 
	 Short term borrowings		   1,121,748 	  1,339,971 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   93,749 	  88,634 
	 Loss on cross currency swap		   9,819 	  12,728 
	 Exchange loss		   183,173 	  21,685 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund 		   2,964 	  2,445 
	 Employees’ provident fund trust		   5,626 	  6,407 

				     3,153,900 	  3,107,947 
	 Bank charges and commission		   67,405 	  93,239 
				  
				     3,221,305 	  3,201,186 
38.	 TAXATION
			 
	 Current year			 
	 Current tax	 38.1	  235,544 	  264,077 
	 Deferred tax		   (26,999)	  124,987 

				     208,545 	  389,064 
	 Prior year			 
	 Deferred tax		   32,220 	  -   

				     240,765 	  389,064 
				  
	 38.1	 Provision for current tax represents final tax on export sales, minimum tax on local sales and tax 

on income from other sources under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance,  2001. 
Numeric tax reconciliation has not been presented, being impracticable.  			 
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			   2012	 2011
		N  ote	 (Rupees in thousand)
39.	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
			 
	 Profit / (loss) before taxation		   2,012,264 	  (1,801,590)
	 Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:			 
	 Depreciation 		   1,628,276 	  1,611,012 
	 Amortization		   12,073 	  10,840 
	 Finance cost		   3,221,305 	  3,198,741 
	 Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment		   91,837 	  (12,766)
	 Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss	  (915,790)	  (4,660)
	 Gain on remeasurement of investment properties		   (1,633)	  (879)
	 Dividend income		   (458)	  (27,980)
	 Provision for doubtful debts		   44,163 	  24,745 
	 Provision for slow moving stores and spares		   640 	  744 
	 Unclaimed balances written back		   (10,066)	  -   
	 Employees’ compensated absences		   18,747 	  6,424 
	 Return on bank deposits		   (17,902)	  (5,926)
	 Loss on disposal of non-current assets classified as held for sale		  -   	  34,050 
	 (Gain) / loss on remeasurement of investments at 
	    fair value through profit or loss 		   (11)	  102 
	 Working capital changes	 39.1	  (729,931)	  1,630,938 

				     5,353,514 	  4,663,795 
				  
	 39.1	W orking capital changes			 
				  
		  (Increase) / decrease in current assets:			 
		  Stores, spare parts and loose tools		   (61,730)	 (608,875)
		  Stock-in-trade		   (237,008)	 701,495 
		  Trade debts		   (339,274)	 788,217 
		  Loans and advances		   (107,183)	 477,045 
		  Security deposits and short term prepayments		   (3,621)	 (3,206)
		  Other receivables		   43,488 	 422,760 

				     (705,328)	 1,777,436 
				  
		  Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables		   (24,603)	 (146,498)

				     (729,931)	 1,630,938  
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40.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES			 
	

	 The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements in respect of remuneration 
including certain benefits to the chief executive officers, directors and executives of the Group are given 
below:

		
		                       Chief Executive Officer	s            Directors	                       Executives

		  2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011							     
			  --------------------( Rupees in Thousand )-------------------	
		  		
	 Managerial remuneration	  9,432 	  8,670 	  11,579 	  10,767 	  94,334 	  81,893 
	 Allowances						    
	 House rent 	  247 	  219 	  1,084 	  1,108 	  28,898 	  23,615 
	 Conveyance	  769 	  376 	  931 	  680 	  18,125 	  13,240 
	 Medical	  433 	  408 	  195 	  312 	  6,446 	  5,259 
	 Utilities	  335 	  317 	  694 	  685 	  10,961 	  9,189 
	 Special allowance	  1,274 	  1,135 	  1,557 	  1,393 	  13,641 	  12,362 
	 Contribution to provident fund	  793 	  726 	  364 	  310 	  8,146 	  6,767 

		   13,283 	  11,851 	  16,404 	  15,255 	  180,551 	  152,325 

	 Number of persons	 2	 2	 5	 5	 95	 89
							     
	 The Chief Executive Officers and directors are provided with the Group’s maintained vehicles, free medical 

facilities and residential telephone facilities for both business and personal use. 			 
	

	 Executives are provided with the vehicles in accordance with the Group’s  policy.			
	

	 The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements in respect of directors’  meeting 
fee paid to 4 (2011: 4) non-executive directors was Rupees 275 thousand (2011: Rupees 240 thousand).		
				  

41.	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES			 
				  
	 The related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associated undertakings, directors of the company and their 

close relatives, key management personnel and staff retirement fund. Detail of transactions with related 
parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements 
are as follows:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
	 Associated Company			 
	 Dividend income		   -   	  26,178 
				  
	 Post employment benefit plan			 
	 Contribution to provident fund		   39,289 	  38,070 
	 Contribution to gratuity fund		   17,700 	  10,391 
	 Other related parties			 
	 Sale of vehicles		   -   	  2,477   
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			   2012	 2011
42.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			 
				  
	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning 
	   per share which is based on:			 
				  
	 Profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
	    the Holding Company	 (Rupees in thousand)	  1,338,740 	  (1,374,209)
				  
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 	 (Numbers)	  245,526,216 	  221,964,572 
				  
	 Earnings (loss) per share	 (Rupees) 	  5.45 	  (6.19)  
				  
43.	 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

	 SPINNING:			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		  (Numbers)
		     	
	 Spindles (average) installed / worked		   85,680 	  85,680 
				  
			    	   (Kilograms in thousand)	
				  
	 100% Plant capacity converted into 20s count based on 
	    3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   36,315 	  33,620 
	 Actual production converted into 20s count based on 
	    3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   24,998 	  23,547 
				  
			    (Numbers)
	  - Gujar Khan Division		    					  
	 Spindles (average) installed / worked		   70,848 	  70,848 
				  
				    (Kilograms in thousand)					  
	 100% Plant capacity converted into 20s count based on 
	 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts )		   31,900 	  32,042 
	 Actual production converted into 20s count based on 
	 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   24,441 	  25,989 
				  
	 WEAVING:			  				  
	  - Raiwind Division		     (Numbers)	
				  
	 Looms installed / worked		   204 	  204 
				  
				    (Square meters in thousand)					  
	 100% Plant capacity at 60 picks based on 3 shifts per day 
	    for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   72,568 	  72,568 				  
	 Actual production converted to 60 picks based on 3 shifts 
	    per day for 1,082 shifts (2011: 1,072 shifts)		   65,871 	  66,580 
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			   2012	 2011

	 PROCESSING OF CLOTH :			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		     (Meters in thousand)					  
	 Capacity at 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)		   41,860 	  41,975 				  
	 Actual production at 3 shifts per day for 1,098 shifts (2011: 1,095 shifts)	  15,204 	  21,367 
				  
	 POWER PLANT:			 
				  
	  - Rawalpindi Division		     (Mega Watts)					  
	 Annual rated capacity based on 366 days (2011: 365 days)		   208,356 	  207,787 
	 Actual generation			 
		  - Main engines		   11,659 	  884 
		  - Gas engines		   41,104 	  60,935 
				  
	  - Raiwind Division				  
	 Annual rated capacity (based on 365 days)		   54,460 	  54,460 
	 Actual generation - Gas engines		   14,366 	  22,432 
				  
	 Stitching 			  				  
	 The plant  capacity of  this division is indeterminable due to multi product plant involving varying 

processes of manufacturing and run length of order lots.

	 CEMENT:		   (Metric Ton in thousand) 	
				  
	 Clinker:			 
				  
	      Annual rated capacity (Based on 300 days)		   3,360 	  3,690 
	      Annual production for the year		   2,648 	  2,753 
				  
			 
	 REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION			  				  
	  - 	 Due to stoppage for normal maintenance, doffing, change of spin plans and cloth quality and  

interruption in gas and electricity supply.

	  - 	 Cloth processing units working capacity was limited to actual export / local orders in hand.

	  - 	 The generation of power was limited to actual demand.
	
	  - Shortfall in cement production was mainly due to break down in cement mills and market constraints.
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	 44.3	 Geographical Information			 
					   
	 44.3.1	 The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed below:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
			 
		  Europe		   1,831,803 	  2,025,774 
		  America		   3,758,302 	  4,342,122 
		  Asia, Africa, Australia		   3,385,366 	  4,017,986 
		  Pakistan		   17,632,184 	  14,724,110 

				     26,607,655 	  25,109,992 

	 44.3.2	All non-current assets as at reporting date are located and operated in Pakistan.	
					   
	 44.4	 Revenue from major customers			 
					   
		  The Group’s revenue is earned from a large mix of customers.

45.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

	 45.1	 Financial risk factors	
			 
		  The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency 

risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk 
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative 
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

		
		  Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department under policies approved by the 

Board of Directors. The Group’s finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board 
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as 
currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, use of derivative financial 
instruments and non derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.  	

			 
	 (a)	 Market risk	
			 
	 (i)	 Currency risk
		  	
		  Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial 
transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to  transactions in foreign currencies.	
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		  The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the United States Dollar (USD), Euro and Yen. Currently, the Group’s foreign exchange risk 
exposure is restricted to bank balances and the amounts receivable / payable from / to the foreign 
entities. The Group’s exposure to currency risk was as follows:

			 
			   2012	 2011
			   (Amounts in thousand)

		  Cash at banks - USD		   454 	  218 
		  Trade debts - USD		   7,282 	  5,948 
		  Trade debts - Euro		   9 	  - 
		  Trade and other payable - USD		   13,081 	  10,811 
		  Trade and other payable - Euro		   382 	  541 
		  Trade and other payable - Yen		   3,400 	  - 
		  Finance lease liability - USD		   10,667 	  10,667 
		  Outstanding letter of credits - USD		   - 	  8 
		  Outstanding letter of credits - Euro		   676 	  351 
		  Net exposure - USD		   (16,012)	  (15,320)
		  Net exposure - Euro		   (1,049)	  (892)
		  Net exposure - Yen		   (3,400)	  - 
					   
		  The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:		

	
		  Rupees per US Dollar			 
		  Average rate 		   89.92 	 85.76
		  Reporting date rate 		   94.58 	  86.05 
				     - 	
		  Rupees per Euro			 
		  Average rate 		   119.01 	 117.96
		  Reporting date rate 		   117.58 	 124.89
					   
	 	 Rupees per Yen			 
		  Average rate 		  1.1400	 1.0400
		  Reporting date rate 		  1.1849	 1.0700
				  
		  Sensitivity analysis			 
				  
		  If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, 

Euro and Yen with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year 
would have been Rupees 71.935  million, Rupees 5.859 million and Rupees 0.191 million (2011 : 
Rupees 62.555 million, Rupees 5.292 million and Rupees Nil) respectively higher / lower, mainly 
as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial 
instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a 
symmetric basis. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent 
currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.		
	

	 (ii)	 Other price risk			 
				  
		  Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk 
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

		



149

		  Sensitivity analysis
		
		  The table below summarises the impact of increase / decrease in the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE) 

Index on the Group’s profit after taxation for the year and on equity (fair value reserve). The analysis 
is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other 
variables held constant and all the Group’s equity instruments moved according to the historical 
correlation with the index:

			 
		                             Index	 Impact on profit	 Impact on statement of other
			   after taxation	 comprehensive income	

			   2012	 2011	 2012	 2011
			    	    --------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) -----------------		

	
		  KSE 100 (5% increase)	  1,685 	  1,013 	  -   	  - 
		  KSE 100 (5% decrease)	  (1,685)	  (1,013)	  -   	  -  

	 (iii)	 Interest rate risk
		
		  This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates.
		
		  The Group has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate risk arises 

from long term financing, redeemable capital, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
and short term borrowings. Financial instruments at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow 
interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

		
		  At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial 

instruments was:
			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)
		  Fixed rate instruments
			 
		  Financial liabilities			 
		  Loans to employees		   4,303 	  4,456 
		  Bank balances at PLS account		   203,195 	  121,642 

		  Financial liabilities
			 
		  Long term financing		   101,206 	  196,551 
		  Short term borrowings		   1,523,203 	  2,277,433 
					   
		  Floating rate instruments			 
					   
		  Financial assets			 
		  Bank balances- saving accounts		   335,595 	  321,044 
					   
		  Financial liabilities			 
					   
		  Long term financing		   3,903,981 	  6,190,730 
		  Redeemable capital		   8,283,000 	  8,289,800 
		  Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   1,167,199 	  1,174,401 
		  Short term borrowings		   7,587,292 	  6,937,498 
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		  Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments			 
			 

		  The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit 
or loss of the Group.			 

					   
		  Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments		
					   
		  If interest rate at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held 

constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 195.756 million (2011 : Rupees 
233.883 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of  higher / lower interest expense / income on 
floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of financial 
instruments outstanding at balance sheet dates were outstanding for the whole year.		
		

	 (b)	 Credit risk			 
					   
		  Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 

for the other party by failing to  discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting 
date was as follows:

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)

		  Investments		   33,733 	  942,941 
		  Deposits		   147,570 	  127,080 
		  Trade debts		   1,657,831 	  1,318,557 
		  Accrued interest		   1,408 	  936 
		  Other receivables		   81,567 	  60,300 
		  Loans and advances		   150,607 	  154,742 
		  Bank balances		   834,986 	  695,845 

				     2,907,702 	  3,300,401  
				  
		  The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 

reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to historical information about counterparty 
default rate:			 
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				    Rating		  2012	 2011

			   Short term	 Long term	 Agency	                (Rupees in thousand)
	 Holding Company

	 Banks					   
						    
	 Al-Baraka Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited	 A2	 A	 PACRA	  2,581 	  6,410 
	 Allied Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA	 PACRA	  3,326 	  6,507 
	 Askari Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA 	 PACRA	  24,236 	  46,473 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	 A1+	 AA	 PACRA	  3,923 	  32,275 
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 A-1-	 AA+	 PACRA	  699 	  1,604 
	 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited	 A1	 A	 PACRA	  22 	  -   
	 Burj Bank Limited	 A-2	 A 	 JCR-VIS	  11 	  279,710 
	 Citibank N.A.	 P-1	 Aa3	 Moody’s	  26 	  494 
	 Faysal Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA	 PACRA	  206 	  774 
	 First Women Bank Ltd	 A2	 BBB+	 PACRA	  19 	  -   
	 Habib Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA+	 JCR-VIS	  119 	  50 
	 HSBC Bank Middle East Limited	 P-1	 A1	 Moody’s	  36 	  -   
	 KASB Bank Limited	 A3	 BBB	 PACRA	  287,502 	  -   
	 MCB Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA+	 PACRA	  25,692 	  26,419 
	 Meezan Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA-	 JCR-VIS	  541 	  618 
	 My Bank Limited	 A-2	 A-	 PACRA	  - 	  32 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 A-1+	 AAA	 JCR-VIS	  1,381 	  4,666 
	 NIB Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA-	 PACRA	  3,495 	  1,657 
	 Silkbank Limited	 A-2	 A-	 JCR-VIS	  9 	  7 
	 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited	 A1+	 AAA	 PACRA	  41 	  10 
	 The Bank of Punjab	 A1+	 AA-	 PACRA	  27,353 	  11,765 
	 United Bank Limited	 A-1+	 AA+	 JCR-VIS	  3,341 	  224 
						    
					      384,559 	  419,695  
						    
	 Subsidiary Company			 
				  
	 Total bank balances of Rupees 450.427 million (2011: Rupees 275.868 million) placed with banks have a 

short term credit rating of at least A1+ (2011: A1+)			 
			   2012	 2011
			   Rating 
			    	
	 Noman Abid Reliance Income Fund		   AM3- 	  AM3- 
	 Alfalah GHP cash fund		   N/A 	  AM3- 
				  
	 The Group’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 25.		

	
	 Due to the Group’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 

consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these 
counter parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.		
	

(c)	 Liquidity risk			 
				  
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 

financial liabilities.			 
				  
	 The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through 

an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2012, the Group had Rupees 10,112 million 
(2011: Rupees 10,702 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 848.729 
million (2011: Rupees 709.476 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes the liquidity 
risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. 
The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:			 
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	 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2012

	 Holding Company

	 			   Carrying	 Contractual	 6 month	 6-12	 1-2	 More than 	
		  amount	 cash flows	 or less	 month	 Year	 2 Years

				         	 ------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
	N on-derivative financial liabilities:						    
								      
	 Long term financing	  1,106,197 	  1,295,803 	  479,149 	  275,161 	  537,706 	  3,787 
	 Liabilities against assets 
	   subject to finance lease	  51,295 	  54,165 	  22,567 	  10,867 	  20,731 	  -   
	 Trade and other payables	  990,455 	  990,455 	  990,455 	  - 	  - 	  -   
	 Accrued mark-up	  185,698 	  185,698 	  185,698 	  - 	  - 	  -   
	 Short term borrowings	  4,364,111 	  4,480,440 	  3,933,471 	  546,969 	  - 	  -   
								      
				     6,697,756 	  7,006,561 	  5,611,340 	  832,997 	  558,437 	  3,787  

		  Subsidiary Company
	 				    Carrying	 Contractual	 Less than	 1 to 5	 5 years	

 				    amount	 cash flows	 year	 and above

	 			        	  	------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
	 Non-derivative financial liabilities:						    
								      
	 Long term financing		   4,400,784 	  5,488,843 	  1,207,021 	  3,247,780 	  1,034,042 
	 Redeemable capital		   8,283,000 	  12,085,483 	  2,042,476 	  6,213,578 	  3,829,429 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	  1,115,904 	  1,158,035 	  804,148 	  353,887 	  - 
	 Long term deposits		   6,219 	  6,219 	  - 	  6,219 	  - 
	 Trade and other payables		   3,479,109 	  3,479,109 	  3,479,109 	  - 	  - 
	 Accrued profit/interest/mark-up		   757,834 	  757,834 	  757,834 	  - 	  - 
	 Short term borrowings		   3,249,384 	  3,249,384 	 3,249,384 	  - 	  - 
							     
				     21,292,234 	  26,224,907 	 11,539,972 	  9,821,464 	  4,863,471  

	 Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2011

	 Holding Company

	 			   Carrying	 Contractual	 6 month	 6-12	 1-2	 More than 	
		  amount	 cash flows	 or less	 month	 Year	 2 Years

	 			        	 ------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
	 Non-derivative financial liabilities:						    
								      
	 Long term financing 	  1,883,424 	  2,264,497 	  472,488 	  313,083 	  721,298 	  757,628 
	 Liabilities against assets 
	    subject to finance lease 	  89,873 	  101,238 	  16,607 	  24,888 	  43,675 	  16,068 
	 Trade and other payables 	  754,095 	  754,095 	  754,095 	  - 	   -  	  - 
	 Accrued mark-up 	  230,138 	  230,138 	  230,138 	  - 	   -  	  - 
	 Short term borrowings 	  5,130,265 	  5,335,524 	  5,301,394 	  34,130 	   -  	  - 
								      
				     8,087,795 	  8,685,492 	  6,774,722 	  372,101 	  764,973 	  773,696 
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		  Subsidiary Company
	 				    Carrying	 Contractual	 Less than	 1 to 5	 5 years	

 				    amount	 cash flows	 year	 and above

	 			        	  	------------------- (Rupees in thousand)  --------------------
	 Non-derivative financial liabilities:						    
								      
	 Long term financing		   4,503,858 	  6,151,885 	  830,867 	  3,518,753 	  1,802,266 
	 Redeemable capital		   8,289,800 	  14,314,638 	  1,205,848 	  7,369,758 	  5,739,032 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	  1,084,527 	  1,159,969 	  568,734 	  591,235 	  -   
	 Long term deposits		   5,569 	  5,569 	  -   	  5,569 	  -   
	 Trade and other payables		   3,693,755 	  3,693,755 	  3,693,755 	  -   	  -   
	 Accrued profit/interest/mark-up		   791,161 	  791,162 	  791,162 	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowings		   4,084,666 	  4,084,666 	  4,084,666 	  -   	  -   
							     
					      22,453,336 	  30,201,644 	 11,175,032 	 11,485,315 	  7,541,298 	

							     

	 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at 30 June. The rates of interest / mark up have been 
disclosed in note 7, note 8, note 9 and note 15 to these financial statements.

45.2	 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities				  
		

	 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate 
their fair values. The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured 
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which 
fair value is observable:

				    Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total 
		
				                                                                        -------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------
		  As at 30 June 2012				  
		  Assets 				  
		  Available for sale financial assets	  -   	  - 	  -   	  - 
					   
		  As at 30 June 2011				  
		  Assets 				  
		  Available for sale financial assets	  -   	  921,391 	  -   	  921,391

	 The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial instruments held by the Group is the 
current bid price. These financial instruments are classified under level 1 in above referred table. The 
Group has no such type of financial instruments as on 30 June 2012.			 
	

	 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where 
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to 
fair value a financial instrument are observable, those financial instruments are classified under level 2 
in above referred table.				  
		

	 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the financial instrument  
is classified under level 3.The carrying amount less impairment provision of trade receivables and 
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure 
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest 
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments. The Group has no such type of 
financial instruments as on 30 June 2012.
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	 45.3	 Financial instruments by categories

			   	 Loans and 	 Through profit	 Available 	 Total
				    receivables	 or loss	 for sale
		
				                                                                        -------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------	
			  As at 30 June 2012				  
			  Assets as per balance sheet				  
			  Investments	  - 	  33,733 	  - 	  33,733 
			  Deposits	  147,570 	  - 	  - 	  147,570 
			  Trade debts	  1,657,831 	  - 	  - 	  1,657,831 
			  Accrued interest	  1,408 	  - 	  - 	  1,408 
			  Other receivables	  81,567 	  - 	  - 	  81,567 
			  Loans and advances	  150,607 	  - 	  - 	  150,607 
			  Cash and bank balances	  848,729 	  - 	  - 	  848,729
	  
				    2,887,712 	  33,733 	  - 	  2,921,445 

					    	Financial liabilities at 
						     amortized cost

				                                     	(Rupees in thousand)
		 	 Liabilities as per balance sheet			 
		  Long term financing			    5,506,981 
		  Redeemable capital			    8,283,000 
		  Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease			    1,167,199 
		  Short term borrowings			    7,613,495 
		  Trade and other payables			    4,469,564 
		  Accrued mark-up			    943,532
 
						      27,983,771  

				    Loans and 	 Through profit	 Available 	 Total
				    receivables	 or loss	 for sale
		
				                                                                        -------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------	

			  As at 30 June 2011				  
			  Assets as per balance sheet				  
			  Investments	  - 	  21,550 	  921,391 	  942,941 
			  Deposits	  127,080 	  - 	  - 	  127,080 
			  Trade debts	  1,318,557 	  - 	  - 	  1,318,557 
			  Accrued interest	  936 	  - 	  - 	  936 
			  Other receivables	  60,300 	  - 	  - 	  60,300 
			  Loans and advances	  154,742 	  - 	  - 	  154,742 
			  Cash and bank balances	  709,476 	  - 	  - 	  709,476

				    2,371,091 	  21,550 	  921,391 	  3,314,032
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	 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	D IRECTOR

					    	Financial liabilities at 
						     amortized cost
				                                  	(Rupees in thousand)	

Liabilities as per balance sheet
			
		 Long term financing			    6,387,282 
		 Redeemable capital			    8,289,800 
		 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease			    1,174,400 
		 Short term borrowings			    9,214,931 
		 Trade and other payables			    4,447,850 
		 Accrued mark-up			    1,021,299 

						      30,535,562  
 
  	 45.4  	 Capital risk management			  					   
		  The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a 

going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure,  the Group  may adjust  the  amount of dividends  paid to  shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements 
of the lenders, the Group  monitors the capital  structure on the  basis of  gearing ratio. This ratio  
is  calculated  as  borrowings   divided by total capital  employed.   Borrowings   represent  long 
term financing, redeemable capital, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and  short term 
borrowings obtained by the Group as referred to in note 7, note 8, note 9 and note 15 respectively. 
Total capital employed includes ‘total equity’ as shown in the balance sheet plus ‘borrowings’.  The 
gearing ratio as at year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 is as follows:			 

			   2012	 2011
			   (Rupees in thousand)

		  Borrowings		   22,570,675 	  25,066,413 
		  Total equity		   5,273,681 	  4,161,186 					   
		  Total capital employed		   27,844,356 	  29,227,599 					   
		  Gearing ratio		  81.06%	 85.76%
				  
		  The decrease in gearing ratio resulted primarily from increase in equity of the Group. 		

	
46.	D ATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE			  					   
	 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 26, 2012 by the Board of Directors of 

the Holding Company.			 
				  
47.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES			  					   
	 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. 

Significant reclassification for better presentation include gratuity of Subsidiary Company amounting 
to Rupees 13.03 million previously included in current liabilities among trade and other payables now 
presented separately under non-current liabilities.			  					   

48.	 GENERAL			  					   
	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless stated otherwise.
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KONINOOR TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
42-LAWRENCE ROAD, LAHORE

PROXY FORM
I/We__________________________________________________________________________________ 

of ________________________________________________________________________________________
	
being a member of KOHINOOR TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint _______________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________
	                                               (Name)	
		
of _____________________________________________________________another member of the Company

or failing him/her  ____________________________________________________________________________            
                                                              (Name)	
		
of _____________________________________________________________another member of the Company

(being a member of the Company) as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for and on my/our behalf, at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at its Registered Office, 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore on 
Wednesday, October 31, 2012 at 3:00 PM and any adjournment thereof.

As witnessed given under my/our hand(s) ____________________ day of ____________________ 2012.

1.   Witness:

Signature	 :	 _______________________			 

Name	 :	 _______________________					   

Address	 :	 _______________________					   

	 :	 _______________________		
			 

		  ________________________
2.   Witness:		  Signature of Member

Signature	 :	 _______________________			 

Name	 :	 _______________________	 Shares Held ___________________________

Address	 :	 _______________________	 Shareholder’s Folio No. __________________

	 :	 _______________________	 CDC A/c #. ____________________________

			   CNIC No.		
Notes:
				  
1.	 Proxies, in order to be effective, must be reached at the Company’s Registered Office, not less than 48 

hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

2.	 CDC Shareholders, entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting, must bring with them their 
Computerized National Identity Cards (CNIC) /Passports in original to prove his/her identity, and in case of 
Proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members 
should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

Affix
Revenue

Stamp of Rs. 5/-
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